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          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Welcome everyone

          3  to today's Public Safety Hearing.  We have a number

          4  of important issues on today and pieces of

          5  legislation, all of them, though, deal with missing

          6  persons and exploited children.  First, we have a

          7  bill on today, sponsored by Council Member Barron,

          8  who is on his way, which amends the criteria the

          9  police department use to commence an immediate

         10  investigation of a missing person.

         11                 In 2000, this Committee held a

         12  Hearing regarding the NYPD's policy on missing

         13  persons.  Today, we'll look at whether those

         14  policies should be changed in any way.  This issue,

         15  of course, has deep resonance for many families

         16  whose loved ones go missing and who are not found,

         17  or who are found dead.  Once those tragedies add

         18  Romona Moore, for whom Council Member Barron's bill

         19  is named, and I believe whose family is here today

         20  to testify, we will hear more about that later on

         21  when Councilman Barron gets here.

         22                 In addition, we'll hear about the

         23  police department's participation in the Amber Alert

         24  program, a mechanism by which law enforcement shares

         25  information with the public about missing children
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          2  to the news media and other methods, such as posted

          3  signs on highway billboards.  I look forwarding to

          4  hearing about the implementation of the Amber Alert

          5  program here in New York City.

          6                 We have a number of Resolutions on,

          7  which I won't go into until we have some Council

          8  Members here, and because we have a limited time

          9  today, I'd like to turn immediately to the police

         10  department.  Welcome, gentlemen and Sue Petito, the

         11  eminent present one, and if you please identify

         12  yourselves and start in whatever order you wish.

         13                 LIEUTENANT DEERY:  Lieutenant Eamon

         14  Deery, Missing Persons Squad.

         15                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  Deputy Chief

         16  Jeremiah Quinlann.

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:

         18  Assistant Commissioner Susan Petito, New York City

         19  Police Department.

         20                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  Good morning

         21  Mr. Chairman and Members of the Council, I am Deputy

         22  Inspector, Deputy Chief, Jeremiah Quinlann, the

         23  Commanding Officer of the Special Investigations

         24  Division, which oversees the daily operations of the

         25  Missing Persons Squad.
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          2                 On behalf of Police Commissioner

          3  Raymond W. Kelly and Chief of Detectives George F.

          4  Brown, I am pleased to be here to describe the

          5  importance that the police department places on all

          6  missing persons cases and the measures employed to

          7  investigate these occurrences.  I am joined by

          8  Lieutenant Eamon Deery, the Commanding Officer of

          9  the Missing Persons Squad.

         10                 I'd like to start by providing you

         11  the definition of a missing person according to the

         12  police department's guidelines.  A missing person is

         13  a person missing from a New York City residence and

         14  is under 18 years of age, or mentally or physically

         15  impaired to the extent that hospitalization may be

         16  required, or senile, mentally retarded or disabled

         17  and not capable of self- care or clear

         18  communication, or 65 years of age or older, a

         19  possible victim of drowning or indicated an

         20  intention of committing suicide, or absent under

         21  circumstances indicating unaccountable or

         22  involuntary disappearance.

         23                 Missing persons do not include

         24  individuals who are wanted for crimes, wanted on

         25  warrants, 18 years of age or older, who have left
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          2  home voluntarily because of domestic, financial or

          3  similar reasons.

          4                 Upon receiving a complaint of a

          5  missing person, a uniformed member of the service

          6  will respond to the scene, interview the complainant

          7  and obtain pertinent information needed to assist in

          8  locating the missing person.  This includes, but is

          9  not limited to information concerning the nature of

         10  the disappearance, description of the subject,

         11  clothing worn and the location where last seen.

         12                 The Patrol Supervisor responds to the

         13  scene, the precinct detective squad is notified, a

         14  Missing/Unidentified Persons Report is prepared and

         15  an investigation instituted.  The

         16  Missing/Unidentified Persons Report is subsequently

         17  faxed to the Missing Persons Squad, where the

         18  information is entered into the National Crime

         19  Information Center.  I'd like to stress that there

         20  is no minimum time limits that must be observed

         21  before accepting a report of a missing person.

         22                 An immediate investigation and/or a

         23  search is required for the following special

         24  category missing persons, where by virtue of age,

         25  disability, or the circumstances surrounding their
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          2  absence, a serious and significant risk of imminent

          3  danger to that person exists.

          4                 Special category persons are defined

          5  as a child under 16 years of age, a person who is

          6  mentally or physically impaired to the extent that

          7  hospitalization may be required, or a senile,

          8  retarded or disabled person who is not capable of

          9  self care or clear communication, or a person 65

         10  years of age or older, or a unique or unusual case,

         11  or someone missing under circumstances indicating

         12  unaccountable or involuntary disappearance, or a

         13  possible drowning victim.

         14                 When any of these special category

         15  persons are reported missing, strict procedures

         16  apply, which may include, depending upon the

         17  circumstances, immediate searches and prompt

         18  mandatory notifications to other units within the

         19  Department. Search teams can include uniformed

         20  patrol officers, emergency service officers,

         21  aviation, harbor, auxiliary members of the

         22  Department, bloodhounds, detectives from the local

         23  precinct, detectives from the Missing Persons Squad.

         24    At times, we have even organized civilians to

         25  assist in these searches.  A temporary headquarters
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          2  is usually established and searches can go on for

          3  hours or even days, depending on the circumstances.

          4                 In addition to these operations,

          5  investigatory measures could include locating

          6  friends and acquaintances and interviewing them,

          7  checking phone records, verifying credit card usage

          8  or ATM withdrawals, and when applicable, personal

          9  computers are searched for clues that may lead to

         10  the recovery of the victim.  In addition, the

         11  missing person's description is broadcast throughout

         12  the City using our Communications Division, and if

         13  needed, the media is used to solicit help from the

         14  public.

         15                 In September of 2002, the New York

         16  State Police, in partnership with various State

         17  agencies, implemented the Amber Alert System, to

         18  provide rapid and widespread dissemination of

         19  information in the event of a child abduction with

         20  special circumstances.  An Amber Alert may only be

         21  activated by the New York State Police.  The

         22  protocol for determining whether a case qualifies

         23  for an Amber Alert is the child must be 17 years-

         24  old or younger and the police must believe that the

         25  child is in imminent danger of serious bodily harm
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          2  or death, either at the hands of another or due to

          3  proven mental or physical disability.

          4                 Once the investigation confirms that

          5  an abduction has occurred, which meets the above

          6  criteria, activation may be requested by the New

          7  York City Police Department.  Amber Alert, in these

          8  specific cases, is an additional component of our

          9  investigative response to these specific events.

         10  Since the initial officer responding to the missing

         11  persons report is generally a patrol officer,

         12  training for missing persons cases is received by

         13  all members of the police department.  An individual

         14  lecture block is part of the police academy and

         15  field training. The lecture consists of definitional

         16  and procedural elements.

         17                 The training topics include the

         18  following: Interview techniques designed to capture

         19  the pertinent elements necessary for investigating

         20  missing persons cases, descriptions, routes of

         21  travel, habits, et cetera; establishing and securing

         22  a crime scene; initial search criteria; expanded

         23  search criteria, including grid searches; proper

         24  report preparation; proper notification procedures;

         25  Amber Alert criteria and activation procedures.
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          2                 In addition, the topic of missing

          3  persons is included in basic and advanced leadership

          4  courses that are given to newly promoted sergeants,

          5  lieutenants and captains.  These courses stress

          6  supervisory responsibilities regarding searches,

          7  notifications and utilization of specialty units.

          8  Lastly, more specialized training is made available

          9  to members of the detective bureau.

         10                 During 2003, 6,529 cases were

         11  recorded at the Missing Persons Squad.  The vast

         12  majority, 4,145 of these cases involved children

         13  between the ages of ten to 17.  Of these cases,

         14  3,747 or 90 percent were closed, with the missing

         15  child located.

         16                 Other cases include unidentified

         17  bodies; unidentified aided cases; missing elderly

         18  persons; unidentified emotionally disturbed persons;

         19  children under ten; kidnap victims or victims of

         20  custodial interference; individuals missing from

         21  group or foster homes; missing persons under

         22  circumstances indicating unaccountable or

         23  involuntarily disappearances; and person under 19

         24  years of age who were arrested and a parent or

         25  guardian could not be notified at the time of the

                                                            11

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  arrest.  For the first 11 months of this current

          3  year, January to November, 5,885 cases have been

          4  recorded at the Missing Persons Squad.

          5                 As stated earlier, when the police

          6  receive a report of a missing person, a preliminary

          7  investigation is conducted from the onset.  Police

          8  and supervisory officers respond to the scene,

          9  conduct interviews of witnesses, examine any

         10  information, any evidence, and make an assessment of

         11  all the facts available to determine the best course

         12  of action.

         13                 Part of the investigative assessment

         14  is determining whether or not the missing person

         15  falls into one of the special categories, whereby

         16  virtue of age, disability or the circumstances

         17  surrounding their absence, a serious and significant

         18  risk of imminent danger to that person exists.

         19                 Under the criteria proposed in Intro.

         20  Number 16, which would include adults up to the age

         21  of 26, the same police resources currently deployed

         22  in special category cases would have to be deployed

         23  in search of emancipated adults who have voluntarily

         24  altered their behavior or habits for reasons known

         25  only to themselves.
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          2                 While the proposed legislation is

          3  well intentioned, simply expanding the special

          4  category age to limit those persons less than 26

          5  years of age, does not enhance our ability to locate

          6  the missing person.  The police department conducts

          7  investigations and searches based on the preliminary

          8  information gathered.  In the absence of credible

          9  information to the contrary, it would be an

         10  unproductive use of limited resources to begin an

         11  extensive search for an emancipated adult who is

         12  capable of self- care and is not in imminent danger.

         13                 If there is information indicating an

         14  unaccountable or involuntary absence, then the

         15  current police department definition allows for a

         16  search and the existing procedures for missing

         17  persons is sufficient.  The present policy strikes a

         18  balance between protecting the interests of the

         19  public and efficiently using the police department's

         20  resources.

         21                 I thank you for your concern and

         22  attention to the issue of missing persons.  Thank

         23  you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you

         25  Chief.  I'm going to start with some questions
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          2  regarding Amber Alert, because I know that Council

          3  Member Barron just arrived and I'll let him

          4  familiarize himself with the testimony that he's

          5  been provided. I'd like to also introduce Council

          6  Member Katz and Council Member Dilan have joined us.

          7    We have other Council Members who will be walking

          8  in and out because, as you could see, there are

          9  various Hearings going on at the same time.

         10                 Chief, regarding Amber Alert, let me

         11  tell you why we've taken some of the actions we have

         12  regarding Amber Alert, putting in Resolutions.  We

         13  love the program here at the City Council.  In fact,

         14  I introduced a Resolution prior to your joining

         15  Amber Alert, requesting that the City Police

         16  Department does it as soon as possible, and you did,

         17  and we actually amended that Resolution, we'll be

         18  voting on it today to commend you for doing that.

         19                 But, obviously, I think there are

         20  some, everything can be improved, and as we

         21  discussed earlier, for example, the signs on the

         22  highways that I know are not under City control, but

         23  we work with the State, which say Amber Alert, tune

         24  to local radio.  I don't think that's an effective

         25  use of resources because tuning to local radio, you
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          2  have to find the station, you have to hope that they

          3  broadcast the information, you then have to have a

          4  pen and paper ready, and it's just not effective.

          5  You should be, they should have the information on

          6  the signs regarding license plate numbers.  They

          7  should be telling people to tune into the highway

          8  station for emergencies, so that the information is

          9  continuously broadcast.

         10                 So, these are things we're going to

         11  work and I'd like to get your opinion on it.  I know

         12  we spoke about this off the record, but I'd like to

         13  hear on the record about how New York City

         14  participates in the Amber Alert program and what

         15  improvements you think we might be able to make and

         16  just any observations you have on what I just said.

         17                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  Thank you.

         18  The Amber Alert system, like I said, started

         19  September of 2002.  We had one case that met the

         20  criteria in 2003, and in 2004, we have four cases,

         21  three cases, for a total of four since its

         22  inception. Each case, you know, it's a new system.

         23  Like any new system, it has bugs that have to be

         24  worked out.  The State Police critiques each event,

         25  and I'll bring your comments to the State Police's
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          2  attention, to see if we could fine- tune it.  It

          3  worked very well in the three, in the four cases I

          4  mentioned, in all cases, the victim was returned

          5  unharmed in a timely manner.  So, it is very

          6  effective when it's held to the criteria, you know,

          7  defined --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Did --

          9                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  -- But --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  -- Did the

         11  apprehension of these persons actually result from

         12  the Amber Alert being issued in any of those cases?

         13                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  It's probably

         14  a combination.  You know, when Amber, Amber Alert

         15  generates additional public knowledge, information

         16  is spread rapidly throughout the City.  That's what

         17  it's main purpose is.  You know, the police

         18  department, in all these cases, were already

         19  investigating them.  But, the Amber Alert generated

         20  additional tips, additional phone calls.  You know,

         21  the additional information helped in the

         22  investigation.  So, it wasn't the sole reason why

         23  they ended successfully, but it certainly helped.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I interrupted

         25  you, were you still commenting on what I said
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          2  earlier?

          3                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  With your

          4  comments, you know, I'll bring them to the attention

          5  of the State Police, who administers the program, to

          6  see if we can improve it.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I think you

          8  testified that you send a, an information sheet to

          9  the State Police?

         10                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And then what

         12  happens?

         13                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  All these

         14  cases, we do a preliminary investigation, number

         15  one, to confirm that the event happened, number two

         16  to confirm that it does fit the criteria. The victim

         17  has to be 17 years of age or under and also be, you

         18  know, the possibility of imminent physical danger to

         19  that person has to be met.

         20                 Once these two criterias are met, we

         21  send up a report to the State Police with as much as

         22  information as we have, asking them to generate the

         23  signage.  So, we send up what we have as far as a

         24  little analysis of it, and then they pick out the

         25  pertinent details, a description of the vehicle, a
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          2  description of the abductor or the perpetrator, and

          3  additional information concerning the victim, you

          4  know, description of the victim, any information.

          5                 You know, the signage, besides the

          6  highways, it also includes state motor vehicles, the

          7  lottery, those lottery strip signs that go across

          8  the machines.  So, it's not just the signs.  And,

          9  also, the --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  That's about

         11  what I was going to ask you.  Other than the signs,

         12  what --

         13                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  Yeah.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  -- Typically is

         15  done?

         16                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  Other than

         17  the signs, the motor vehicles, those, those riders

         18  that you see going around across the top in motor

         19  vehicles, state lotteries, they have the signage

         20  that blinks across the top of the machine.  They

         21  also transmit an abbreviated version of the message.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Those are

         23  things under State control, obviously?

         24                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  Those are

         25  under State control.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So, before we

          3  move into voluntary cooperation by the media, are

          4  there any other State controlled actions that we

          5  take during an Amber Alert?

          6                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  Basically,

          7  that's it.  The highway signage, upstate, they'll

          8  also, we'll also determine what areas we want the

          9  Amber Alert broadcast.  Usually, it's the areas that

         10  we think the person's going to be.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And, regarding

         12  voluntary cooperation of the media and any other

         13  institutions, how do you, how does that work?

         14                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  The State

         15  Police gives it to the media.  It's voluntarily

         16  cooperation with the media.  So, they determine, the

         17  media, themselves, determine how much publicity, how

         18  frequently they want to broadcast these events.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So, that's all

         20  that's done, then, is that you just contact the

         21  media and it's completely up to them?

         22                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  Well, we

         23  contact the State Police, the State Police releases

         24  to the media.  You know, also, you know, on cases

         25  that don't meet the Amber Alert criteria, we also
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          2  cooperate with the media on a local level.  So,

          3  Amber Alert is State- wide, and it can be, you know,

          4  locate, you know, State wide, but if we have a

          5  serious missing person case that we want additional

          6  media attention, we release it through our DCPI.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  We all applaud

          8  the participation of the media, obviously, and I

          9  think they're doing an excellent job.  But, again,

         10  that's voluntary.  So, other than the media

         11  involvement, we're talking about some signs on DMV

         12  and lottery machines.  So, the main way that we

         13  transmit this information, State- wide, is the

         14  highway signs.

         15                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  The highway

         16   --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  It seems even

         18  more important that we work on improving these signs

         19  as much as possible, I would --

         20                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  I agree.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Okay.  Are

         22  there any questions on Amber Alerts before we move

         23  on to other topics? When there are multiple

         24  jurisdictions involved, let's say there's an Amber

         25  Alert and you think someone's heading for the George

                                                            20

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  Washington Bridge, what happens then?

          3                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  We'll

          4  contact, if it's out, going out of State, we'll

          5  contact the other State.  New Jersey, I believe,

          6  participates in the Amber Alert system also.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Okay.  I'm

          8  going to move on to the second topic that you

          9  testified about regarding missing persons policies.

         10  Before I do that, obviously, we've been joined by

         11  Council Member Barron, who has a bill that we're

         12  investigating today, and who was the impetus behind

         13  this Hearing and has been asking for this for a

         14  while, and he understands that we, that this

         15  Committee, especially, has been busy with anti-

         16  terror and things of that nature.

         17                 So, we, it takes us a while to get to

         18  some of these other worthwhile topics, and there are

         19  many, many that are still waiting, awaiting Hearings

         20  from other Council Members. But, so, we do the best

         21  we can.  Council Member, thank you for you joining

         22  us and I'd ask you if you'd like to make an opening

         23  statement?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Well, first I

         25  wanted to say thank you very much Chair Vallone for
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          2  bringing this before your Committee and I did

          3  understand that you had a very, very busy schedule,

          4  and even today, as two or three agenda items that

          5  you have to deal with.  So, I'm very grateful that

          6  you have put it on the agenda and the Romona Moore's

          7  family is here.  I just would like to acknowledge

          8  them.  If you could just stand up very quickly.

          9  That's the family members of Romona Moore.  I'm sure

         10  they're very grateful as well.

         11                 I think most people know, Romona

         12  Moore was a 21 year- old Hunter College student, who

         13  was reported missing on April 24, of 2003.  When the

         14  family reported it to the police department, they

         15  said, basically, well, we don't have to search for

         16  her right away because she doesn't fit in any of the

         17  categories.  She's not under 16, 16 or under, she

         18  doesn't have any of the specific criteria, and she's

         19  not 65 or over.

         20                 So, they said to the family that, you

         21  know, she's probably with her boyfriend or just

         22  staying out overnight.  This is a fine young lady

         23  who just doesn't do things like that.  They decided

         24  not to look for her immediately.  They waited about

         25  three or four days to looking, before they commenced
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          2  looking for her and they, most police, law

          3  enforcement, tells me often that the first three

          4  days, 24 hours to 72 hours is the most critical

          5  times to look for a missing person, because that's

          6  when you're more likely to find something,

          7  particularly if they're in the vicinity, then it's

          8  more likely that you'll be able to find the person.

          9                 So, we are concerned about that

         10  response and we felt that had there been an

         11  immediate search for Romona, who was only found on

         12  May 10th, two months later, a month or two, about a

         13  month later, four or five blocks from her home or

         14  from the area where, if an immediate searched was

         15  commenced, we believe she would still be alive

         16  today.

         17                 I heard you say that you appreciate

         18  the intent of this, but it wouldn't increase the

         19  ability to really look for, to find the person.  I

         20  just respectfully disagree with you there, in that

         21  it would enlarge the category of the kinds of

         22  persons that you have to immediately look for.

         23  That's what we're after here, because many college

         24  students are having, there's a lot of problems on

         25  college campuses of missing persons and the 25,
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          2  increasing the age to 25, will then say that we have

          3  to immediately look for a college- aged student if

          4  it's brought before the police department and the

          5  time that you have to submit that to the Missing

          6  Persons Bureau.

          7                 I heard a range from three day, I

          8  heard seven days, but that should be even increased

          9  and have a more sense of immediacy, because we have

         10  a real problem with that age range, and had Romona

         11  been on that list at 21 years of age, she may have

         12  been alive today, if a search was commenced

         13  immediately.  That's why this bill, Mr. Chair, is so

         14  important, so that we identify a problem that the

         15  law enforcement may not see as a problem, or as an,

         16  making it more efficient or effective in finding a

         17  missing person, but it does enlarge the category

         18  and, therefore, it would enable us to look for

         19  persons.

         20                 We're respectfully calling this law

         21  the Romona Moore Law in the name of her.  She was a

         22  fine student, an honor student.  One of the nicest

         23  persons anyone would want to meet and she had a

         24  great future ahead of her, and we just think no

         25  other family should have to go through what the
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          2  Romona Moore family had gone through, to have them

          3  look for their missing loved ones.

          4                 I might add they look more

          5  immediately, and Mr. Chair, you know I always

          6  respect your Committee Hearings and, but when it

          7  came to a white lady in another part of town, she

          8  didn't fit the category and they looked for her

          9  right away.

         10                 So, to assure that we get that kind

         11  of treatment too, we want to make sure that the law

         12  says that you have to look for everyone right away,

         13  and not at the discretion of a police precinct to

         14  say who is over 16, we will look for this one, but

         15  this one over 16, she's probably out with her

         16  boyfriend.  So, to avoid that discretion being on an

         17  individual, we would rather have it a law that says

         18  that you have to look for everyone 25 and under.

         19  Thank you Mr. Chair.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you

         21  Council Member Barron, and thank you for respecting

         22  this Committee and other, there are respectful ways

         23  to make controversial points and in this Committee,

         24  at least you've been successful in doing that.

         25  Before we move on, Council Member Katz has some
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          2  questions. Regarding what Council Member Barron

          3  said, apparently, there's two different sets of

          4  criteria here.  There's one to be a missing person,

          5  and there's one to be a missing person where an

          6  immediate search, this special category group.  Now,

          7  someone who's 21 or say 23, who is reported missing,

          8  is not qualified, is not even classified as a

          9  missing person.  So, in that instance, they don't

         10  fit this criteria to even be a missing person, what

         11  happens? What's the policy?  Do you even take a

         12  missing persons report? How's it work?

         13                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  First of all,

         14  you know, we take a missing persons report on all

         15  instances where somebody reports a person missing

         16  under the criteria, you know, they're not over 18

         17  and voluntary, you know, if I hade a fight with my

         18  family and they know I'm leaving.  You know, if

         19  there's unusual circumstances where there's some

         20  sort of endangerment, an emancipated person who

         21  leaves voluntarily and tells the family he's

         22  leaving, that's clear cut that this person's not a

         23  missing person.  A person over 18, where the

         24  circumstances would indicate some sort of crime or

         25  involuntary leaving, could generate a large search,

                                                            26

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  you know, depending on the circumstances.  So --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So they are

          4  qualified --

          5                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  -- We take

          6  missing persons, you want to report somebody missing

          7  and you can articulate the person is missing for

          8  reasons other than voluntary, immediate report is

          9  taken, there's no time limit in us taking the

         10  report.  What generates the search is the

         11  circumstances besides the age, you know, in my

         12  statement, I mentioned the age of 18, but also I

         13  mentioned, indicated an intention of, somebody is

         14  suicidal, somebody emotionally disturbed, and also

         15  circumstances indicating unaccountable or

         16  involuntary disappearance would also fit into the

         17  missing persons and would also fit under the special

         18  categories.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you.

         20  The, one of the, the bill before us today would

         21  raise the age regarding special categories, I

         22  believe, which to 25, which would begin an immediate

         23  search for people under 25 or 25 and under?  25 and

         24  under.  Now, to prepare for this Hearing, what I had

         25  done was send a letter to the Department asking for
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          2  statistics and basic information about how many

          3  missing person reports there are for people under

          4  age 16, how many from 16 to 21, how many from 21 to

          5  25, so we could better examine the merits of Mr.

          6  Barron's bill. Unfortunately, the response we got

          7  was that you were not, you don't have that

          8  information yet, but you were working on a system

          9  that would put that information into place.  Can you

         10  give us an update?

         11                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  The missing

         12  persons reports are currently being computerized.

         13  All that information, the age, would be on the

         14  missing persons report.  At this point, we would

         15  have to do a hand search to tabulate all those

         16  numbers. We do classify them as far as, you know,

         17  missing elderly, unidentified missing, unidentified

         18  emotionally disturbed person, person missing under

         19  ten, person missing between the ages of ten to 17,

         20  missing from foster homes, abduction victims, those

         21  arrested under 19, where we haven't notified a

         22  parent or a guardian, and also, what we call a

         23  Category G, a Category G would be those persons

         24  missing under involuntary circumstances or unique

         25  circumstances.
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          2                 So, we don't classify it in the age

          3  group you gave me.  But, you know, we've had under

          4  ten years- old, in 2003, we had 44 cases, missing

          5  between the ages of ten and 17, we had 4,145 cases,

          6  the special categories I mentioned, where, you know,

          7  they're over 17, but missing under circumstances

          8  that require a police investigation, in 2003, we had

          9  527 such cases.  The numbers for --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I'd just like

         11  to get those numbers again, so it's ten, 44 --

         12                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  Sure.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  -- Cases in

         14  2003 --

         15                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  Right.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Ten to 17, was

         17  it 4,145?

         18                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  4,145,

         19  correct.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And then over

         21  17 with the special circumstances, 527.

         22                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  Correct.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Now, that over

         24  17, though, is any age over 17.  You wouldn't have

         25  that broken down over 17 and under 25?
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          2                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  No, the ages

          3  would be under ten, like I said, ten to 17, and then

          4  those falling into the special Category G Group,

          5  which would be involuntary disappearances.  If you

          6  like, I can give the numbers for the, this is the

          7  first 11 months of this year.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Yes, thank you.

          9                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  Okay, this

         10  year, we've had 28 reports of missing under ten,

         11  3,830 between the ages of ten to 17, and that

         12  special Category G, special circumstances, unusual

         13  disappearance, it would be 471 this year.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So, it follows

         15  the same pattern.  Now, we all would want the police

         16  to stop everything and look for every missing

         17  person, no matter what age, if you had the

         18  resources, but, we understand that you don't.  So,

         19  the question is how much of a drain would it be on

         20  your resources if we expanded the age of mandatory

         21  searches?  Now, you don't have that information,

         22  obviously, because you'd have to go through manually

         23  every missing persons report at this point, when

         24  will you have this computerized, so that we can find

         25  out that information?
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          2                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  From what I'm

          3  told is they're working on it by April this year.

          4  We should have a good grip on that.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So, April it

          6  will be computerized.  Will you then be able to

          7  gather the information that we were requesting?

          8                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  The way the

          9  system's designed, if it works, by April we'll be

         10  able to give you a breakdown by age specific.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Okay.  Okay,

         12  that would be very helpful.  But, before we get

         13  that, you're the experts and you have the Chief of

         14  the Missing Persons Bureau here, how much of a, over

         15  17, appears to be, again, this year it's 471 out of

         16  about 4,500 cases, not a huge amount of missing

         17  person cases. What would you estimate the amount

         18  being people from 17 to 25?

         19                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  You know,

         20  it's an undetermined number.  I really can't comment

         21  on it.  But, you know, somebody in New York is

         22  emancipated at the age of 18.  So, if they leave

         23  voluntarily, you know, the police can't forcibly

         24  bring them back to the parents.

         25                 Also, I mentioned in my testimony
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          2  that we broadcasted through the National NCIC, which

          3  goes, covers the 50 States and the territories.  So,

          4  if somebody is found out of state, over 18, who

          5  voluntarily left home, and the police stop them,

          6  they really can't hold that person and force them to

          7  come home.  So, it increase our, it certainly would

          8  increase our volume of cases.  A lot of these cases,

          9  the person's over 18, they voluntarily left home, we

         10  have no legal ability to hold on to them, number

         11  one, and number two, return them.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  My last

         13  question before I move on to other Council Members.

         14  Much of this hinges on these unusual circumstances

         15  you mentioned.  Obviously, it's very discretionary.

         16  If someone's over 18, it hinges on that and I know

         17  that we, you've had discussions with me indicating

         18  that you're not able, not authorized today to speak

         19  about specific cases.  So, you're not going to take

         20  any questions on that.  But, in general, what

         21  criteria do you have which would indicate special

         22  circumstances exist?

         23                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  The unusual,

         24  the patrol officer responds to the scene, the patrol

         25  sergeant responds to the scene, the desk officer's
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          2  notified, you know, a missing persons report is

          3  prepared, the detective squad is notified.

          4  Examination is made, a preliminary investigation in

          5  these cases is made on the scene, you know, if we,

          6  we interview witnesses, we interview the reporter,

          7  we examine the location.  If there's any indication

          8  that the person is in danger, a missing persons

          9  search will be conducted more extensive than the

         10  initial preliminary investigation.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Okay, I'm going

         12  to have some follow- ups on that, but first, let me

         13  go to Council Member Katz for some questions, and

         14  then Council Member Barron.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I thank you for

         16  joining us here today.  I actually worked quite

         17  extensively on missing persons issue at Borough

         18  President Shulman's office, but it was six years

         19  ago.  My memory may not be as good as I'd like it to

         20  be, and also, things might have changed since then.

         21                 I'll try to be as brief as possible,

         22  but, very quickly, my understanding is someone, a 25

         23  year- old is reported missing today.  The mother,

         24  father, they call the police station. They talk to

         25  the officers on duty.  They don't automatically
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          2  speak to the Missing Persons Bureau, I know that's

          3  not the name of it, but, is that correct?  The

          4  officer on the duty will do the preliminary

          5  investigation, will talk to the family, things of

          6  that nature?

          7                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  Well, the

          8  officer would speak to the family and also request

          9  that a patrol supervisor respond.  So, you have the

         10  original officer responds and also a supervisor.

         11  The supervisor would speak to the family, as well as

         12  the officer.  If it wasn't, if it's indicated that a

         13  missing persons report should be prepared, it would

         14  be prepared.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  But, my child's

         16  missing for two, for four hours.  I'm just saying,

         17  how, what is the time, when does it reach that?  If

         18  I --

         19                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  There is --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  -- Just call

         21  you and say, look, I think, I don't know why, but I

         22  think that my 25 year- old, you know, was abducted.

         23  I don't, will they be told, you need to call back in

         24  a day or are they automatically intaked?

         25                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  No, they
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          2  would take, they would prepare the --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Okay.

          4                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  -- Missing

          5  persons report, which, you know, would give you a

          6  description of the person and any additional

          7  information that the reporter provides us.  The

          8  missing persons report would be sent to the precinct

          9  detectives squad, which is right in the same

         10  geographical area, and it would also be faxed over

         11  to the Missing Persons Squad.  Once it's received at

         12  the Missing Persons Squad, it would be reviewed and

         13  entered into the NCIC, so it's immediately broadcast

         14  on our NCIC. So, all police agencies would be able

         15  to pull up that information.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  And the

         17  detectives, though, that are being called in for

         18  questions and things of that nature though, are not

         19  missing persons detectives, they're the general

         20  detectives of the precinct, right?

         21                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  Well, the

         22  detectives from the precinct would --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Work with the

         24  Missing Persons Bureau --

         25                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  -- Work with
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          2  the reporter, try, and also work with Missing

          3  Persons, they would re- interview the complainant to

          4  get additional information, interview any friends,

          5  any witnesses.  Also, it requests a photo, a color

          6  photo of the person, because that also helps.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  This is all

          8  just a regular, this is not a special category, this

          9  is not under 17, this is just a regular person,

         10  every day, that's that would happen?

         11                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  Correct.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Okay.  So now

         13   --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Council Member

         15  Katz, I just need to clarify one thing you just

         16  said.  So, if somebody comes in and says, my 24

         17  year- old child is late for two hours, I don't know

         18  why, but I think she's abducted.  You're going to

         19  take all of those actions?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Right, that's

         21   --

         22                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  We would do

         23  the preliminary investigation, you know if the

         24  person, if we feel that this person left, you know,

         25  a child that age, you would interview people, you
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          2  would try to get a photo, you would do the report,

          3  yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So, there's no

          5  even bare minimum that needs to be established --

          6                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  You would --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  -- Before you

          8  do all that work?

          9                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  You would do

         10  the preliminary investigation.  If it indicated that

         11  this is unusual for the child, yeah, you would

         12  search the area.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So, before you

         14  send this information State- wide, like you just, I

         15  think, said you were going to, you would do the

         16  preliminary investigation?

         17                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  Correct.  You

         18  would do the preliminary investigation, try to

         19  interview any friends.  The patrol officers would

         20  respond to the scene.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Those are

         22  basically in any case then, because that's just

         23  about as, a missing persons case with almost no

         24  evidence that exists, that Melinda Katz hypothesized

         25  here.  So, in any case that comes in, you're going
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          2  to do a preliminary investigation?

          3                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  Any case, we

          4  would do a preliminary investigation to determine,

          5  you know, the extent of the case, try to locate the

          6  person, you know, a smaller child, if I'm reporting

          7  my child missing and I'm shopping with the person,

          8  the officer's going to search the immediate area

          9  first because usually the child is --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  But I'm not

         11  talking about a child, though.  My circumstance

         12  wasn't a child.  My circumstance was a 25 year- old

         13  child.

         14                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  A 25 year-

         15  old person --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Person.

         17                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  -- Who's

         18  missing --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Right, okay.

         20                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  -- Isn't

         21  their normal, it's not routine for them to be

         22  missing, we would take a missing persons report.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Okay, and you

         24  take my word for it that it's not a normal pattern

         25  of behavior?  Basically, that's basically what
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          2  happens, you take the parents' word --

          3                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  We would take

          4  your --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  -- Or the

          6  sister's word or.

          7                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  We would take

          8  your word for it.  We would take the report.  We

          9  would also do checks, computer checks to see if this

         10  person's been reported in the past, is it a runaway.

         11    You know, there's a whole series of checks and

         12  balances, but the report is taken.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Okay, so, I'll

         14  let other Council Members follow- up with that, but

         15  let me just finish with my line of questions.  So,

         16  basically, there's a few categories, under 17,

         17  serious injury, is immediate investigation and if

         18  I'm not mistaken -- or potential for serious injury,

         19  if my memory serves me correctly, that if that

         20  happens and it's reported, you do a search of the

         21  schools, friends' houses and things of that nature.

         22  That starts that immediately, when it's that age of

         23  a child, right?

         24                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  Correct.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I, one of the
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          2  things that Councilman Barron was talking about,

          3  that, you know, I think has cropped up with this

          4  legislation, I think we're going to need the stats,

          5  Mr. Chair, from the police on other things besides

          6  just the numbers that you asked for.

          7                 I don't know how to really flush it

          8  out, I'm just, but, we sort of, I would like the

          9  numbers of not only those folks who had missing

         10  persons report, but I'd like the numbers of, I don't

         11  even know how to phrase it, the missing reports that

         12  come in of people that are over the age of 17 years-

         13  old, that was determined that there wasn't any

         14  reason to follow- up with the other investigation.

         15                 I think that's really the type of

         16  information that I'd like to know.  I think that

         17  that would go a far way in, hopefully, either

         18  alleviating any issues or maybe looking at issues

         19  that we really need to deal with.  But, if one of

         20  the issues is that the discretion is left up to the

         21  police officers as to when they really believe that

         22  there is an issue happening here in the family, and

         23  that it's not just a 20 year- old daughter that got

         24  mad, and not that I ever did that as a 20 year- old

         25  daughter, and walked out on her family, I think we
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          2  need to see -- okay, you had, 3,000, well, I don't

          3  know how many were over the age of 17, but you have

          4  5,000 people who were reported missing over the age

          5  of 17, and, you know, 200 of them were worth, you

          6  know, or you felt there was some reason to continue

          7  the investigation.

          8                 I think that that would be very

          9  helpful and what in that criteria made you think

         10  that there was a reason to follow- up? And I'm not

         11  sure if that would be available.  But, those are the

         12  type of things I think we might need to see.  Mr.

         13  Chair.  Thank you very much.

         14                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Council Member

         16  Barron.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Mr. Chair, I

         18  hate to bring up some harsh reality here, that just

         19  doesn't happen in our neighborhood.  That just does

         20  not happen.  I mean, when we went to report that,

         21  see, there's no, there's no way you're going to find

         22  out the depths of this problem.  It's like trying to

         23  find out how many people are really stopped and

         24  frisked, but if an officer doesn't fill out the

         25  form, you're not going to know how many people
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          2  actually stopped and frisked.

          3                 We're not going to know how many

          4  people came to the precinct and said, my person, my

          5  loved one was missing, and you told them that

          6  they're probably with their boyfriend and didn't

          7  fill out anything.  And, they had to leave with

          8  nothing being filled out.  That's not going to be

          9  recorded.  And, if we have a lot of cases where

         10  people are saying that that happens, that's not

         11  recorded, and then, we've got to wait for the -- we

         12  can't wait until April for another missing person

         13  happen before we, you know, can get this legislation

         14  going.

         15                 If you would have had to, by law,

         16  looked for Romona Moore, she would have been alive

         17  today.  I think it's worth having some policy

         18  changes if it can save a life.  Because, sometimes

         19  what's presented here is not what's happening in the

         20  neighborhoods.  When we get to the neighborhood

         21  precinct- level, and we have to count on the

         22  discretion of a single officer to take a report from

         23  somebody, then they have to believe the person and

         24  they can't have no prejudicial thinking about how

         25  our people are, and make a determination.
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          2                 We don't want to be at that person's

          3  beckon and call to make a determination.  That's why

          4  this law is important. Because, sometimes, we get

          5  into the abstract stuff here at City Hall, but when

          6  you get back to those neighborhoods, and it can mean

          7  a loss of life, this is very serious.  So, I don't,

          8  you don't take, the police department, they don't

          9  just take and do all the things that you said, no

         10  matter how old the person is. That did not happen.

         11  And, I know you're not here to talk about any

         12  specific cases and that's fine, but that did not

         13  happen and that doesn't happen in many instances.

         14                 So, what do we do, what do we do for

         15  a family that goes to a police precinct and says,

         16  this is unusual, unique and unusual behavior for my

         17  loved one to be even an hour late, but we haven't

         18  seen her in 24 hours and the police department tells

         19  her mother and her father that she's probably out

         20  with her boyfriend? Where did he get clairvoyance

         21  from?  Where did, how did he know she even had a

         22  boyfriend?  That's what's happening in our instance,

         23  and, in another instances.  So, we can't be at the

         24  beckon and call of a desk sergeant or someone who's

         25  just going to not even fill out the form, not even
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          2  declare it a missing person, until we demonstrate,

          3  scream, holler, put pressure, and then, all of

          4  sudden, now, it's a case that has to be taken on

          5  three days later.

          6                 This is very important and I think

          7  that, I don't want my colleagues to miss it.  I

          8  thank the Council for having 26 Members who signed

          9  onto this legislation, but for you, I just want to

         10  let you know it's very, very important.  It's not

         11  happening the way you say it.  Not in our

         12  neighborhoods.  It's just not happening like that,

         13  and we need something to be put in place just to

         14  make sure that if a person is missing, and a lot of

         15  college students are coming up missing, and some of

         16  them are doing all kinds of things now on the

         17  college campuses, there's a lot of problems, and I

         18  think this can be a remedy for one of the problems.

         19  Thank you Mr. Chair.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So, to follow-

         21  up, is it then official Department policy that

         22  anyone who wants to make a complaint, has to be

         23  given that right to do so.

         24                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  Yes, yes, our

         25  policy is --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  There is no

          3  waiting period, as you said before --

          4                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  There are no

          5  time limits, the report is taken by the officer,

          6  it's investigated by a supervisor, referred to the

          7  precinct detective squad and determined on the

          8  circumstances, if it meets those special category

          9  criterias, an immediate search is conducted.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Would a

         11  statistic even exist if someone showed up at a

         12  precinct and was convinced, for whatever reason,

         13  rightly or wrongly, to not make the complaint. Would

         14  there be some record of someone coming into the

         15  precinct or calling the precinct and no action being

         16  taken?

         17                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  No.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  See, that

         19  would be good.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Council Member

         21  Katz.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Just, one of

         23  the things when I worked under Assistant Borough

         24  President Shulman was, at my suggestion, she had

         25  requested the New York City Police Department, Mr.
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          2  Chairman, to have a missing persons person in the

          3  precinct.  It became a little bit difficult because,

          4  you know, it's not, there's not always missing

          5  persons issues in each precinct.

          6                 But, the theory being that if there

          7  is one person who is in charge of sort of that area,

          8  like we have community affairs officers and we have,

          9  you know, that type of thing, then they would get to

         10  know whatever community they were in, and that it

         11  might alleviate some of the discretionary issues

         12  that occur because they would know the community.

         13  In my community, you know, a 24 year- old may be

         14  missing for different reasons than in your community

         15  or other communities.  But, they get to know the

         16  people.  So, it's just one suggestion that came up

         17  back then.  I don't know if you have any comments,

         18  it's not really not on the record today, I know

         19  that.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Well, we have

         21  the Commanding Officer of Missing Persons Squad

         22  here, Lieutenant Deery, if --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I'd be curious

         24   --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  -- You may
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          2  please --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  -- As to your

          4  opinion --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  -- If you'd

          6  address Council Member Katz' question about what

          7  type of, whether there is someone designated as a

          8  missing persons officer at every precinct or in

          9  every borough or how that works, if you please.

         10                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  You know,

         11  just before we go onto that, you know, each precinct

         12  has community affairs officers, they have youth

         13  officers.  The youth officers respond and all, you

         14  know, they look at the truancy rates, the runaway

         15  rates, the chronic runaways.  The detective squads,

         16  they investigate anything that's referred to the

         17  squads, and missing persons would be.  They also do

         18  homicides.  You know, it's not just your routine

         19  detective squads, they're trained investigators.

         20  You know, they do everything from homicides on down.

         21    Missing persons is very important and is treated

         22  as such by a local precinct squad.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I'm not

         24  questioning that it's treated, I wasn't questioning

         25  that, what I was just asking was, just, there seems
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          2  to be a police department thought that, or policy,

          3  that there are certain categories of things in a

          4  police precinct that need its own expertise.  One

          5  would be, you know, I just name the community

          6  officers as an example, because they get to know the

          7  community and sometimes it's easier.  So, that's why

          8  I was asking whether you thought a missing persons

          9  person in, missing persons officer noteworthy?

         10                 LIEUTENANT DEERY:  Well, at this

         11  point in time, there is no detective in the Missing

         12  Persons Squad assigned to each detective squad.

         13  Again, these cases are handled by the individual

         14  squads for the first seven days.  The detectives

         15  that are assigned there are just as competent, they

         16  have the same training that we, the detectives

         17  assigned to my Squad have.  As a matter of fact, I

         18  get people from various squads that come to the

         19  Missing Persons Squad based on their experience in

         20  the precincts. So, at this point in time, there are

         21  none assigned and.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  We will follow-

         23  up with that with a question.  But, before we go any

         24  further, Council Member Yassky is here, and he a

         25  Member of the Public Safety Committee, whose
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          2  Chairing a Committee next door, so I want to take a

          3  few votes on Resolutions.  We have a little work to

          4  do, while Council Member Gentile is also here,

          5  Member of this Committee and floating back and

          6  forth.  So, we have four Resolutions we're voting on

          7  today.

          8                 We'll begin with Resolution 81- A and

          9  we've had Hearings on all these Resolutions.  This

         10  one calls on the State Legislature to increase the

         11  penalty for the failure to register or verify an

         12  address, as required by the Sex Offender

         13  Registration Act and to require that the convicted

         14  sex offenders perform their annual address

         15  verification in person.

         16                 We had a Hearing on this on April 2nd

         17  of this year, we heard testimony from John Feinblack

         18  (phonetic), Criminal Justice Coordinator, that the

         19  failure of sex offenders to register made it

         20  difficult for the NYPD and other law enforcement

         21  agencies to track the location.  Surprisingly, the

         22  penalty for failing to register is only an A

         23  Misdemeanor and the Criminal Justice Coordinator

         24  agreed with us and urged the State to adopt a more

         25  stringent D Felony, in order to ensure compliance.
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          2                 Also, Assembly Member Gennaro has

          3  proposed legislation in Albany, calling on all sex

          4  offenders, not just the worst, to perform their

          5  address verification in person and that's what our

          6  Resolution is calling on Albany to do.

          7                 So, let me mention every Resolution,

          8  so we can vote on them all at one time.

          9                 Resolution 247- A, calls on the State

         10  Legislature to amend Megan's Law to mandate

         11  community notification regarding sex offenders.  The

         12  problem we came across in our recent Hearing was

         13  that this is discretionary, the notification.  Now,

         14  we commended the police department on their efforts

         15  and they do the best they can, but on many times, it

         16  did not filter down, especially in situations

         17  involving school children, and that the parents of

         18  these kids were not getting notification because it

         19  was left up to individual schools and individual

         20  community groups.  We want to make it mandatory that

         21  the community is notified.

         22                 Third Resolution, 624, is commending

         23  the police department for its participation in the

         24  Amber Alert broadcast system.  As I said, normally

         25  we don't just put in Resolutions commending you for
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          2  doing something like that, it would be kind of a

          3  waste of time, but we put this in when you weren't

          4  member of the broadcast system, we urged you to do

          5  it, and since you did do it, we amended to commend

          6  you for that.

          7                 And, Resolution 672, is, has been put

          8  in by Council Member Nelson and myself, and Council

          9  Member Nelson is on his way down, which commends the

         10  20th anniversary of the COP SHOT program.  COP SHOT

         11  is the Citizens Outraged at Police Being Shot. 20

         12  years ago, this was founded by Edward Arrigoni, in

         13  response to the number of police officers shot in

         14  the early 1980's.

         15                 The program is solely funding itself

         16  and funds are gathered through annual contributions

         17  by its own members.  These funds go to the rewards

         18  paid out and the printed materials that, in order to

         19  try to bring people to justice who shoot a police

         20  officer.  It's been credited with identifying two

         21  suspects in the sniper shooting of Police Officer

         22  John Reilly in May, 1986, and in 1994, with

         23  assisting in bringing two witnesses forward in the

         24  death of Officer Sean McDonald.

         25                 It's a worthwhile program.  As Edward
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          2  Arrigoni said himself, that if there is a breakdown

          3  of respect for the men and women in blue, who are

          4  sworn to protect and serve us, then what chance does

          5  the average citizen have?  This Resolution commends

          6  the program on its 20th anniversary.

          7                 So, those are the four Resolutions

          8  that we'll be voting on right now, and I'd like to

          9  call the vote.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member

         11  Vallone.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I proudly vote

         13  aye on all four.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Dilan.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Aye on all.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Katz.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Aye on all.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Yassky.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Aye on all.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK:   Gonzalez.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  Aye on all.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Gentile.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Aye on all.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By a vote of six in

         25  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no
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          2  abstentions, all items are adopted.  Council

          3  Members, please sign the Committee Report. Thank

          4  you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I ask that it

          6  be held open for the duration of the Committee

          7  Meeting.  Council Member Katz, did I interrupt your

          8  questioning?  Council Member Katz, did I interrupt

          9  your questioning?  Were you done?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Yes I am.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  You're done,

         12  okay, thank you, thank you.  Gentlemen, we have a

         13  good deal of information that we'll be requesting

         14  from you in written form after this Hearing, and we

         15  look forward to you completing the computerization

         16  as soon as possible, so that will assist in

         17  answering our questions.

         18                 We will be working with you, again,

         19  to determine whether or not the changes put forth in

         20  Council Member Barron's bill would be, would be

         21  something that would assist the people of New York

         22  City and the police department and everyone involved

         23  in finding missing persons as soon as possible.

         24  Again, we are concerned with burdening the police

         25  department in cases that may not merit it.  But,
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          2  obviously, there are instances where this bill would

          3  have resulted in a difference and we are about to

          4  hear some of those.

          5                 We know that there will be

          6  representatives from the police department that are

          7  going to remain in this room to hear the testimony

          8  that comes after this.  So, thank you all for coming

          9  down today.  We look forward to working with you on

         10  this bill and all the other aspects we discussed

         11  today.

         12                 DEPUTY CHIEF QUINLANN:  Alright,

         13  Chairman and Members of the Council, I thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  The next

         15  witnesses we'll hear from are the members of the

         16  Romona Moore family who are prepared to testify

         17  today.  You may just, you may come up and take the

         18  seats that are presently occupied now, but are

         19  becoming vacant.  As far as I know, it's Patricia

         20  Douglas and Margorie Mann.  We've been joined by

         21  Council Member Jennings.  Will you please take his

         22  vote.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member

         24  Jennings.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  I vote aye
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          2  on all.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Vote now stands at

          4  seven in the affirmative, zero in the negative and

          5  no abstentions.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you.

          7  Council Member. Thank you for coming down today, we

          8  appreciate you taking the time and effort to come

          9  here.  We know that you're a catalyst behind this

         10  Hearing today and of working very hard for a long

         11  time on this with Council Member Barron and we,

         12  again, we appreciate your coming down here today.

         13  We know this is a tough topic for you to talk about,

         14  but what you say today will go a long way to helping

         15  us to improve the system.  So, thank you and you may

         16  begin in whatever order you determine.

         17                 MS. MANN:  Okay, I'll go first.  I'm

         18  reading on behalf of my daughter --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Just pull that

         20  a little closer to you, thanks, there you go.

         21                 MS. MANN:  I'm reading on behalf of

         22  my daughter, Shaundell Terry (phonetic), who has

         23  been the spokeswoman since this occurrence.  Romona

         24  was my niece.  Shaundell states, good morning

         25  everyone.  It is with great regret that I am unable
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          2  to attend the Hearing today.  On the evening of

          3  April 24th, 2003, Romona walked out of her door and

          4  out of our lives forever. However, Romona remains in

          5  our hearts all the time and I am addressing this

          6  Committee with the hope that the events following

          7  her disappearance will not occur in another family's

          8  life.

          9                 Prior to Romona's disappearance, she

         10  had never slept out.  She had not missed one day of

         11  school.  She would never be late without calling

         12  home to tell her parents what was wrong.  None of

         13  these factors were taken into consideration when

         14  Romona was missing.  She was regarded as a runaway.

         15  We were repeatedly told that her actions were that

         16  of a person her age.

         17                 I think if one life is being spared

         18  or one family can live a normal life, this bill is

         19  worthwhile passing.  Our lives have been completely

         20  disrupted.  She was an only child, a beautiful

         21  cousin, a wonderful student.  My family is here

         22  today to support Councilman Barron's request that a

         23  bill be passed that would allow the police to

         24  conduct searches for missing persons between the

         25  ages of 18 to 25, before 24 hours.  This would
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          2  change the present law.  I thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  You have to

          4  press that button in.

          5                 MS. DOUGLAS:  Good morning everyone.

          6  The family of Romona Moore appreciates this

          7  invitation and opportunity to speak to this

          8  Committee.  We believe that the time has come to

          9  initiate immediate action into the whereabouts of

         10  missing persons, while expanding their present

         11  criteria to include persons 25 years and younger,

         12  whether or not an absence is consistent to the

         13  person's usual pattern and schedule known by family

         14  and friends.

         15                 Romona was an ambitious 21 year- old

         16  honor student at Hunter College, who never missed a

         17  day of school.  It is the feeling of this family

         18  that Romona's death was untimely and could have been

         19  prevented if the existing law allowed police to act

         20  on the report of her disappearance immediately.

         21                 In New York State, a child in college

         22  is considered a dependent until the age of 23 for

         23  tax purposes and medical benefits.  Hence, we

         24  believe that extension of the age limit to include

         25  missing persons 25 years and under is appropriate.
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          2  We believe that the Romona Bill law would benefit

          3  New Yorkers regardless of race, color or creed.

          4                 It is our observation that the

          5  police, that the present police procedure has tied

          6  the hands of policemen, making it impossible for

          7  them to be more effective in this area.  The acts

          8  and this Committee's acts, act immediately so that

          9  New Yorkers can be benefit.  We thank you for your

         10  patience and understanding and anticipate a positive

         11  outcome to this request. Thank you.

         12                 MR. MANN:  Good morning everyone.  My

         13  name is Troy Mann.  I'm the brother of Shaundell

         14  Terry and I grew up with Romona.  I traveled from

         15  Maryland this morning, because I thought that this

         16  was that important.  I just came out of the Holland

         17  Tunnel and I'm glad that I made it.  I'm going to be

         18  brief.

         19                 On the week of April 24, 2003, the

         20  lives of my family and I were changed forever.  We

         21  believe that the lack of concern and the lack of

         22  action on the part of the New York City Police

         23  Department contributed immensely to the pain and

         24  suffering that my cousin endured.  This lack of

         25  action to launch an immediate search was precisely
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          2  due to the current law regarding this matter.

          3                 When someone is abducted, time can

          4  mean the difference between life and death.  This is

          5  a premise that we believe fits our tragic loss.  An

          6  amendment or otherwise change to the law in question

          7  may prevent other families from experiencing the

          8  catastrophic loss that my family is still coping

          9  with.  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you all

         11  for coming down.  Before, I'd like to have

         12  Councilman Barron start asking some questions.  But,

         13  before I do, I'd just like you to know that Council

         14  Member Barron has been tireless in his efforts down

         15  here to get this bill heard, and I'm sure he will

         16  continue to do so until we come to some sort of

         17  resolution here.

         18                 He and I don't see eye- to- eye that

         19  often, to put it mildly, but he has, that has not

         20  stopped him from continually working with me and my

         21  staff and doing everything he can to make sure that

         22  we had this opportunity for you to speak out.  So,

         23  let me turn it over to Council Member Barron.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Thank you

         25  very much Mr. Chair.  Thank you for the attention
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          2  you've given this bill and this Hearing and the

          3  seriousness and the, and your staff as well, you

          4  know, for working with Paul Washington, my Chief of

          5  Staff, to really work through, and I'm even hoping

          6  that as we go through the Hearing, that we might

          7  even do things to strengthen it and put some other

          8  things in place, after we finish hearing from other

          9  people, to see how we can make sure that families

         10  are provided with this kind of service from the

         11  police department that will protect us.

         12                 But, I just wanted to say to you,

         13  certainly I wouldn't want to prolong you with any

         14  questions or anything, but I just wanted to admire

         15  your strength and the love that this family has

         16  shown for each other and supporting each other

         17  during a very difficult time, and for you to come

         18  all the way from Maryland, you said? Shows what kind

         19  of family.

         20                 This is a very religious family.

         21  I've been to church with, in some of the church

         22  services, so I'm just here to let you know that a

         23  lot of my colleagues are very much supportive and

         24  with you and we're going to continue to go forth and

         25  really strengthen this bill, so that Romona Moore's
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          2  death will never be in vain, because we believe that

          3  we're going to have a law in her name and that

          4  others in this town will benefit from this law and

          5  it will be in the name of Romona Moore.  So, I will

          6  not prolong you with any questions.  But, I thank

          7  you for your strength and your continued endurance

          8  around this issue.

          9                 MS. MANN:  Thank you.

         10                 MS. DOUGLAS:  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Let me

         12  reiterate that on behalf of Council Member Jennings

         13  and all the other Council Members, who I said,

         14  unfortunately, are, have to be at other Hearings at

         15  the same time as this one.  But, we appreciate your

         16  coming down here and making the effort.  We look

         17  forward to working with you and my staff, Ted

         18  Becker, and all the others, will work with you as

         19  much as we can to continue to move this forward in

         20  whatever form it eventually takes.  So, thank you,

         21  on behalf of the entire City Council, we appreciate

         22  it and we look forward to working with you on this.

         23                 The next panel -- you can,

         24  unfortunately, travel all the way back to Maryland,

         25  now, but, you can go.  Thanks.  The next panel will
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          2  be Susan Wilmer, whose been advocating improvements

          3  to this policy for a long time now, Katherine Kupka,

          4  who also has a personal story to tell and Arnita

          5  Fowler, who is the, representing the La Mont Dottin

          6  Foundation, who was her son, and who has -- you can

          7  all come up and take seats.  Arnita Fowler, I know

          8  has been, I've met with her, must have been years

          9  ago, at this point, on this issue, and has also been

         10  tireless. And I know that because she's been calling

         11  my office many times on this issue.

         12                 I look forward to hearing the

         13  testimony from all three of you about the

         14  legislation in front of us and any possible

         15  improvements that you might recommend.  So why don't

         16  we start, just because, we'll start with the left

         17  because that's what I just picked off the top of my

         18  head, and you can identify yourself and begin

         19  testifying.

         20                 MS. WILMER:  My name is Susan Wilmer.

         21    I helped form FOCUS, which operates on the West

         22  Coast, by distributing posters throughout the

         23  western states.  Last year, alone, 2,000, 202,000

         24  flyers, representing 184 missing persons, were

         25  distributed by our representative.  14,874 miles
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          2  were driven in 11 major events, such as county

          3  fairs, were attended.

          4                 I also am a chartered member of Team

          5  HOPE, on organization originally funded by the U.S.

          6  Justice Department, under the auspices of the OJJDP.

          7    Recently, we officially became part of the

          8  National Center for Missing and Exploited Children.

          9  Even though I represented missing adult children,

         10  the Justice Department invited me to join, for they

         11  realized a huge gap existed in services to missing

         12  persons over the age of 18.

         13                 My daughter, Jennifer, age 21,

         14  vanished without a trace on September 13, 1993, from

         15  a small town in Northern California called Hawkins

         16  Bar.  I commend Councilman Barron for bringing this

         17  piece of legislation to the attention of this great

         18  Council in memory of Romona Moore.

         19                 I want you all to imagine, I wish all

         20  the police were here -- I just want to get this

         21  point across, I wish you to imagine the scene, your

         22  child, yes, even a 21 year- old, is child,

         23  disappears one day.  You turn to the people who are

         24  the only ones who have the power to help, and you

         25  are told to go home and wait, your child had just
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          2  gone away for a while, like so many others. But, you

          3  know your child, and this is not an action normally

          4  taken.

          5                 You plead and beg and this just, does

          6  not change the attitude you face.  You delve deeper

          7  and try to appeal to the human side and relate all

          8  the wonderful traits that your child possesses.  You

          9  try to think of that one trait that will certainly

         10  make them see that your child is worthy of their

         11  attention.  But, nothing changes their cold hearts

         12  and you find yourself, like me, 11 years later,

         13  still buying flowers on her birthday and on the date

         14  of her death, and placing them on your dining room

         15  table.  Flowers that belong on a grave that was

         16  denied you because we have a system that allows

         17  inaction, and that's exactly what we're talking

         18  about.  We have nothing but the memory of groveling

         19  for Jennifer's life.

         20                 This all took place in Northern

         21  California, not in this great City.  But, look what

         22  did happen here?  Romona Moore's parents begged for

         23  three long days before the only ones capable of

         24  doing anything listened.  Whether three days or 11

         25  years, it's all the same.  Our children are
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          2  disregarded as if their life meant nothing.  No

          3  parent should ever have to prove the worth of their

          4  child.

          5                 Young women are vanishing throughout

          6  the country. The few cases reach the attention of

          7  the media, but thousands more are buried in the

          8  hearts of broken parents and husbands and sisters

          9  and brothers.  I am very well aware of the

         10  difficulty these cases present.  You have no victim.

         11    You only have the work of the person closest to

         12  the victim.  I have a quote from a retired

         13  detective, Detective Doherty, from Nassau County,

         14  who said, if the parents don't seem so too upset,

         15  then we don't get upset.  But, if the parents think

         16  something dreadful has happened to their child, we

         17  find they usually are right and we act accordingly.

         18  This detective had learned to listen to those

         19  persons closest to the victim.

         20                 There is one fact I can give you and

         21  I hope you take it to heart.  In all my 11 years of

         22  activism in the missing adult field, I have dealt

         23  with hundreds of cases, either the missing adult

         24  child is still missing or their bodies were

         25  eventually recovered.  In not one of these cases,
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          2  has the child returned home safe and sound.  Now,

          3  these are the cases that have come, that make that

          4  phone call to a missing person organization. These

          5  are the people that, the ones that have that

          6  urgency.  That it's not being heard by the police.

          7                 What happened to my daughter and the

          8  manner in which her case was handled, I had hoped

          9  would have ended by now. But, our society and

         10  current laws allow the taking of our children who

         11  have left the safety of the nest.  Through inaction,

         12  the message is out there that our young women are

         13  fair game.  The Romona Moore law proposed today

         14  would help guarantee that those individuals who, up

         15  to now, thought they could get away with snatching

         16  our young, will be hunted.  I beg you all,

         17  therefore, to pass this wonderful law.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you and

         19  we'll have some questions for you after everyone's

         20  done.  Ms. Kupka.

         21                 MS. KUPKA:  Hi.  Thank you for having

         22  the Hearing. I just want to say first that I'm

         23  responding to what Mr. Barron said earlier about he

         24  thinks it could be discriminatory and I think it is

         25  discriminatory and I think people in poorer
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          2  neighborhoods have a much harder time.  My sister

          3  disappeared from Kensington, Brooklyn, and she was

          4  white.  She had the same thing happen to her.  So, I

          5  think that the issue too is discriminatory against

          6  women, in general, that's another way to look at it.

          7

          8                 Okay, so my sister, Christine, she

          9  was five months pregnant, she left her apartment

         10  with Darshanand Persaud, the father of her unborn

         11  child, on Saturday, October 28, 1998.  She never

         12  returned.  I went to the police precinct in

         13  Kensington, where Christine lived, the following

         14  morning, because I knew that she was dead.  She

         15  would never not return home, nor would she never,

         16  nor would she fail to call.  It was absolutely out

         17  of the norm.

         18                 A uniformed officer heard my story,

         19  which was quite unusual and suspicious, as she was

         20  pregnant, he was married, he begged Christine not to

         21  have the baby.  She left with him on Saturday and

         22  she never returned, and she was afraid of him.

         23  Seems suspicious and unusual to me.  But, he sent me

         24  away, stating that since she was under 18 and not

         25  mentally retarded, there was nothing that she could
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          2  do, that he could do.  He told me to go find the

          3  guy.

          4                 I have since seen the police

          5  regulations regarding missing persons and know there

          6  is a point that an investigation can commence if

          7  there are suspicious events surrounding the

          8  disappearance.  Even though there were in my

          9  sister's case, the officer did not cite that as a

         10  reason to allow me to see a detective and he sent me

         11  home.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Could I just

         13  interrupt one quick second, your sister was how

         14  only?

         15                 MS. KUPKA:  28, I'm sorry.  So,

         16  again, I agree with you, Mr. Barron, when you ask

         17  the police if they will investigate anything.  It's

         18  totally up to the discretion of the uniformed

         19  officer that just is sitting in the precinct or that

         20  just takes the phone call, and it shouldn't be like

         21  that.

         22                 So, two days later, I found out for

         23  sure, my worst nightmare was realized, when the

         24  father of my sister's unborn baby was confronted.

         25  He said that he didn't know where Christine was and
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          2  immediately he said we should file a missing persons

          3  case, which I think is indicative of him knowing

          4  that nothing would happen.

          5                 We also found out he told huge lies.

          6  When we found him, he was still living at home with

          7  his parents and his wife.  He had told my sister

          8  that he had been thrown out of his house and his

          9  wife left him and his parents knew, and none of that

         10  was true.  He told Christine the day he took her

         11  from her apartment that they were going to see his

         12  new apartment because he was homeless, and he told

         13  the, he told my husband and our friend that he had

         14  taken her to Queens Center Mall.  So, I mean, these

         15  are all very suspicious elements, and you would

         16  think that they would lead to an investigation.

         17                 So, I went, again, to the precinct

         18  that night and demanded to talk to the detectives.

         19  It took me a while to finally get upstairs to talk

         20  to them because the uniformed officers were saying

         21  they could do nothing.  The detectives then,

         22  unfortunately, didn't do a whole lot better.  They

         23  proceeded to make excuses for Darshanand Persaud's

         24  behavior and they continued to attempt to blame

         25  Christine.  I actually felt like Christine and I, my
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          2  sister and I, were the criminals.  Their responses

          3  were, maybe she checked herself into a psychiatric

          4  hospital, maybe she went to the Caribbean, maybe

          5  she's a drug dealer, after all she works at a

          6  Jamaican restaurant, maybe she was suicidal. So,

          7  these were just some of the things they said to me.

          8  Never, did they say, okay, give us the address,

          9  let's go talk to the guy, just straighten things

         10  out, see what happened.

         11                 The police then did begin an

         12  investigation the night it first appeared on major

         13  local news broadcasts.  They called me right after

         14  it aired and told me that they opened the case.

         15  That was five days later, well after Rudy had

         16  covered his tracks and hired an attorney, or

         17  Darshanand Persaud, people call him Rudy.

         18                 So, my sister's case now, six years

         19  later, is bogged down on the cold case squad, and

         20  I'm lucky, I'm exceptionally lucky that it was

         21  transferred there from Missing Persons, because cold

         22  case squad works on cold cases, they don't get a

         23  bunch of coming in cases, so they have time to

         24  focus.  It was only because of the media, my

         25  sister's case was on like New York Magazine, lots of
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          2  TV shows, my private investigator Gil Elba

          3  (phonetic), because he continued to push, and our

          4  relentless pushing, that it was reassigned there.

          5                 As of today, we know where her body

          6  is, and we can't get a warrant to search.  So, my

          7  private investigator and I continue to go to the

          8  people that we know where her body is and they

          9  continue to say, they're trying, they're going to

         10  get a lawyer and continue to say, no, we can't come

         11  in.  If her case had been handled properly, it's

         12  likely it would have never come to this.  If a

         13  detective heard the circumstances of her

         14  disappearance the first time I went to the precinct,

         15  instead of the uniformed officer misleading me and

         16  sending me away, we might have found my sister's

         17  body and arrested her killers.

         18                 So, I have attached an article

         19  regarding violence against pregnant women for you

         20  review.  It states that the leading cause of death

         21  of pregnant women is homicide.  I've sent it as

         22  proof that this is a section of the population that

         23  needs special attention.  My sister was pregnant and

         24  that is the reason she's dead and still missing.

         25  The father of her unborn child, Darshanand Persaud,
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          2  didn't want the baby, and when talking didn't work,

          3  he turned to murder.

          4                 So, I'm requesting that you add

          5  pregnancy to the list of requirements to investigate

          6  a missing persons case.  I also certainly support

          7  the age increase, because I do feel that it's

          8  important issue with college students and young

          9  women.  So, I'm almost done.

         10                 I still feel that there's a major

         11  problem with any changes that the City Council

         12  makes.  The missing persons regulations are not

         13  known by uniformed officers that first hear the

         14  reports in the precinct and make major decisions

         15  regarding who sees a detective and who doesn't, and

         16  this is proved by Romona's case, because they sent

         17  her away.

         18                 The people here today, the police

         19  officers or chiefs, whatever, they say that they

         20  don't do that, but they do that.  They did that in

         21  1998 and they did it again in 2003, and they've done

         22  it hundreds of time since.  So, it's not true and

         23  this is going on for way too long.

         24                 I feel that the uniformed officers

         25  are not trained and I know that because I went to
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          2  the police academy a few years ago and met with the

          3  trainers and -- I lost my place -- but I met with

          4  trainers and you know what? They didn't know.  They

          5  had to get the book and look.  So, they didn't just

          6  know it like off the top of their head.  They

          7  thought there was a time stipulation.  I said, no,

          8  no, there's no time stipulation in New York.

          9                 So, anyway, I believe the police

         10  academy cannot ensure that the uniformed officers

         11  are trained as to the criteria regarding

         12  commencement of an investigation.  I think that they

         13  must be trained to send the reports, reporters of

         14  missing persons right upstairs to the detective

         15  bureau and the detectives, hopefully having more

         16  experience, will be able to make a better

         17  determination of, and based on more experience and

         18  more knowledge.  I don't have much faith in police

         19  training, you know, but I do think there are

         20  excellent detectives out there.  I've met many

         21  myself and I do believe that if it's left to the

         22  detectives, they'll have a better, a better, better

         23  results.

         24                 One thing that Ms. Katz talked about

         25  is having the missing persons specialist and I've
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          2  been a proponent of that for, since 1998.  I talked

          3  to Chief Ali (phonetic), he was previous police

          4  chief, who met with me a few times, very, a nice

          5  person, but I talked to him about that issue, and he

          6  said, they don't do specialists, and I say,

          7  everyone's a specialist in the police department and

          8  why can't you just couple it with the missing, with

          9  the domestic violence specialists?  Because, you

         10  know, there's, there are, there's a lot of domestic

         11  violence, of course.

         12                 But, missing persons, with,

         13  especially young women, a lot of time, it has to do

         14  with, you know, significant other.  So, I don't

         15  think it would be burdening that person to have just

         16  more missing persons experience and be like the

         17  point person in the precinct.  So, and what they

         18  said, what they said today was the same as what they

         19  say, they say they can't do it, they don't have the

         20  resources, blah, blah, blah.  But, but they do.

         21  They just don't think it's all that important.  So,

         22  you know, I appreciate you guys doing this and I

         23  would love to do more to help, and if there's

         24  anything that I can do, then I would be happy to do

         25  it. Thank you and thanks a lot Mr. Barron.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you very

          3  much and I have some, a bunch of questions I'm going

          4  to ask as soon as we hear all the testimony, because

          5  there's so many things that are popping up and it's

          6  very informative.  Ms. Fowler --

          7                 MS. FOWLER:  Yes, I think I'm on.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  -- Nice to

          9  finally see you downtown in City Hall, after all

         10  those times you've called my office and been to my

         11  office.  So, thank you for coming down.

         12                 MS. FOWLER:  First of all, let me

         13  just say that this is very passionate to me.  I flew

         14  in yesterday from California, specifically to attend

         15  this Hearing.  Now, I was deployed last year for the

         16  war and I worked 20 hour days and seven days a week,

         17  and I still can tell you that the search for my son

         18  as a one- woman search party was tougher than me

         19  working in the war last year.  That is because to

         20  the fact that what I heard today is the same

         21  rhetoric I've heard for the past ten or so years.

         22                 Now, yes, we are emotionally attached

         23  to the cases that surround our loved ones.  But, I

         24  can clearly tell you from much research, I had four

         25  years to research this because I had to wait four
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          2  years to find my son's body, because of this very

          3  reason of the current law and the restrictions on

          4  the age.

          5                 I had to look for four years for my

          6  son.  Whether you look three days, whether you look

          7  four years, the current law is a problem and it is a

          8  test of our will to live as individuals. It's very

          9  hard to look for your loved ones and suffer at the

         10  same time.  It is almost impossible.  But, it is the

         11  fight alone to look for your loved one that make us

         12  exist today, to come to this Hearing today, because

         13  the pain that a family goes through, the pain that

         14  Romona Moore family had to go through for three

         15  days, I can surely tell you that it was probably the

         16  worst thing they will probably ever experience in

         17  their life.

         18                 Wondering where your child is,

         19  wondering if they're on their last breath, wondering

         20  if they need your help, wondering if they can call

         21  the medics, wondering if somebody is hurting them,

         22  is the thoughts that run through your mind day in

         23  and day out.  So, I echo Councilman Barron when you

         24  ask those specific questions to them.  How do you

         25  track the people who walk into the precinct and are
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          2  not allowed to fill out any paperwork?

          3                 So, let me just be very clear and get

          4  straight to the point, the reason we need this bill

          5  passed is because unless your loved one is

          6  officially declared missing, you will not receive a

          7  missing persons case number.  And, if you look under

          8  the distribution that I passed out to you, on the

          9  second page behind the outline, you will see a

         10  sample of that missing persons card, that has a

         11  missing persons case number on it.

         12                 Without that number, you cannot use

         13  the available City and State resources, such as 1-

         14  800- LOST, such as the National Council for Missing

         15  Persons that was started out of the Etan Patz case.

         16  You cannot use victim services.  As a matter of

         17  fact, they won't even talk to you unless you have

         18  that number.  I kept every piece of paper for

         19  everyone I called.

         20                 The reason you need to change the

         21  current law is because they will continue to tell

         22  you, as they did today, that they do not have the

         23  resources available to them to research every

         24  missing persons case.  But, they're tying their own

         25  hands by the very existing law.  If they would go
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          2  ahead and by discretion, look at case by case, based

          3  on the age extension to 25, they will understand

          4  that not only do they have resources that they can

          5  use, but victim services can assist them and so can

          6  1- 800 assist them.

          7                 Also, those of us who have missing

          8  loved ones, we are going to hire a private

          9  detective.  Every case I have read about, the family

         10  has hired a private detective, because they love

         11  them just that much.  But, the private detective

         12  that we hire hands are tied because they, too, do

         13  not have a missing persons case number.  It is that

         14  case number that opens the doors.  We're not asking

         15  the police department to render all their resources

         16  to us.  We're just simply saying, stop the

         17  suffering.  It is unnecessary rhetoric.  It is

         18  unnecessary.

         19                 When they do not allow us to declare

         20  our loved ones missing, it results in death.  The

         21  bus driver I hear that recently was on a motorcycle

         22  accident, who went over a cliff here in Queens, he

         23  could have needed medical attention, but because he

         24  was older, no one looked for him.  We also hear

         25  about the fact that Romona Moore who was, three days
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          2  later they commenced a search, she could have needed

          3  medical assistance, but no one looked for her.

          4                 My son, who was missing for four

          5  years, at, it took them 30 days and my tenacity to

          6  get them to officially declare him missing.  He

          7  disappeared on October the 17th and my son traveled

          8  with me in the military for 12 years.  He came here

          9  only to meet me so when I got out of the military.

         10  But, I never had that reunion with my son.  I never

         11  saw his face again.  All I ever heard was his voice

         12  on the phone.

         13                 The age limit results in death

         14  because people are not going to help you.  The age

         15  limit results in unclaimed bodies.  My son's body

         16  laid in the City morgue for four months from the day

         17  I reported him missing.  His body washed up on the

         18  Hudson River six days after I reported him missing.

         19  In the meantime, they were fighting me because of

         20  his age.  But, had they stopped fighting me and did

         21  the very basic search, they would have realized that

         22  my missing persons complaint and a unclaimed body in

         23  the City morgue matched up together.

         24                 They are not even doing the basic

         25  research.  The age restriction goes on to increase
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          2  the number of people buried in Potters Field because

          3  anyone who is unclaimed ends up in Potters Field and

          4  that's where my son's body was laid, in Potters

          5  Field, after being held for four months.

          6                 Now, imagine this, I flew in from

          7  military duty to look for my son within 24 hours,

          8  because I know the predictable behaviors of my loved

          9  one.  He was a Queensboro College student. Just the

         10  very argument that you're using today.  He was

         11  attending college, he did not come home by a certain

         12  time and it was at that time that I knew right away,

         13  your gut feeling as a mother, as a parent, tells

         14  you.  Everything the police department does is not

         15  in a regulation.  There's a lot of time, by

         16  experience and by gut feeling.  So, what makes them

         17  any different than us as parents?  When I say to

         18  you, there's something wrong, at least listen to me,

         19  that's what we're asking, is at least listen to us.

         20                 Had they listened to us, and had they

         21  had cross precinct communication.  They continue to

         22  tell you that they're working on automating this

         23  information, but Councilman Vallone, let me assure

         24  you, let me assure you, it don't take long to make a

         25  manual system automated, and it certainly does not
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          2  take ten years.  The numbers you asked for today are

          3  the very numbers we asked for back when my son

          4  disappeared.  There is no form to fill out because

          5  there is no tracking mechanism in place.

          6                 Now, I have years of experience with

          7  this situation, the bottom line here is that they

          8  believe that missing adult people are those who

          9  chose to walk away.  That is not the case.  What you

         10  have done is correlate the word missing with

         11  abduction and that is not necessary.  Missing does

         12  not mean abduction, missing mean it could be

         13  homicide, it could be a victim of circumstances, and

         14  so we need to broaden that definition.  We need to

         15  get rid of the age limit, Council Member Vallone.

         16  This is so unnecessary.  So unnecessary.

         17                 I just wanted to say, they,

         18  eliminating the age is not solely about increasing

         19  the resources used by the NYPD.  It is about giving

         20  me and everyone else access to a system that we use

         21  to pay our tax dollars on.  It is about allowing me

         22  more beneficial use to call on a victim services,

         23  check the morgue, decrease the number buried in

         24  Potters Field.  I couldn't even go to the various

         25  hospitals and ask them if there were any Jane and
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          2  John Does there because I did not have that number

          3  that we need to get.

          4                 If time is crucial to finding a

          5  person within the first three hours, time is also

          6  crucial in finding missing adults in order to

          7  provide them medical needs that they need.  Every

          8  Romona Moore's case that we don't remove the age

          9  limit, we will never find the Romona's, we will

         10  never find the La Mont Dottins. If we don't change

         11  the law today, we will never rectify the situation.

         12                 Removing the age restriction will

         13  provide immediate access, immediate access to

         14  resources.  99.9 percent of families will hire the

         15  private detectives, as I told you, because we need

         16  the answers.  Families are depending on us.  My

         17  mother depended on me, the very one who's going

         18  through the grief, my mother, who is a senior

         19  citizen, had no other recourse.  My brothers and

         20  sisters depend on my.  My son had a daughter.  She

         21  depended on me.  So, whether I was tireless or

         22  wanted to quit, I could not quit, I could not give

         23  us this fight.  So, whether a person is 16, 26, 36,

         24  56 or 66, it doesn't matter.  The fight to find a

         25  loved one does not change based on age and they need
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          2  to know that.  It does not change.

          3                 We want results and we want the

          4  suffering to stop. So, removing or even lowering the

          5  age restriction is moving in the wrong direction for

          6  the wrong reason.  To continue to tell us that you

          7  don't have the adequate resources is unacceptable to

          8  me. This is the war that I want to fight here on

          9  this territory, that that is no excuse for us to

         10  suffer like we do.  They have forced us to live in a

         11  fishbowl.  I could not even go and work for an

         12  employer and fight this fight because of what I

         13  might bring on to the employer because I'm going to

         14  fight this fight.  So, I have chosen to fight this

         15  fight and live day to day the best way I can.  It

         16  doesn't matter because this is important to me.

         17                 We need to find closure to bring to

         18  the Romona Moore's family and bring to other

         19  families.  Just because our loved ones is not here

         20  to speak up, out of sight does not mean out of mind

         21  when a loved one is missing.  It does not mean that.

         22  So, I called on the officials for years, to look for

         23  my son.  For four years I called them, and I want

         24  you to know, Councilman Vallone, I would have spent

         25  40 years calling them, if it had taken that long for
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          2  me to find my son's body. There is no end to such a

          3  situation as this.

          4                 The last time there was a callous and

          5  a movement regarding missing persons was back in

          6  1979, when we made the move to put photographs of

          7  missing persons on milk cartons when Etan Patz was

          8  missing.  I'm asking you today to let Romona Moore

          9  family be the catalyst to changing the age limit,

         10  removing the age restriction.  It is time for

         11  another movement in here.  It is time for another

         12  outcry.  This is totally unacceptable.  Don't let

         13  the NYPD -- excuse me, did they all leave?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  They're sitting

         15  right here in the front row, Romona, there are

         16  several representatives in the front row.

         17                 MS. FOWLER:  Good, because I want to

         18  make it very clear that there is no accountability

         19  in the precincts.  I went to 103rd Precinct and I

         20  went to One Police Plaza, and even after they

         21  officially declared by son missing 30 days later, I

         22  want you to know that was just a piece of paperwork

         23  action, because they still didn't compare my report

         24  with the John Doe that was laying one block down the

         25  street.  So, that was just a paperwork action.
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          2                 So, all I'm asking you right now is,

          3  they need to implement some automated way, that they

          4  are not policing themselves, because right now they

          5  are policing themselves and that's why they cannot

          6  give you the numbers that you're asking for.  So, we

          7  need to establish some type of panel that will go

          8  in, just get the numbers for us.  We just want data,

          9  so that we can help them make a decision.  That's

         10  all we want is data. Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you all.

         12  You may know that I'm the father of two little

         13  girls, nine and ten, and I can only imagine what you

         14  all went through losing children.  By the way,

         15  regardless of the age limit, every one of those

         16  cases, yours was California, but every one of those

         17  cases should have been investigated under the

         18  unusual circumstances policy that existed at the

         19  time.  That's something else we're looking into.  I

         20  have many questions.  We don't all that much more

         21  time, unfortunately, but Council Member Jennings

         22  needs to run across the street to another Hearing

         23  that begins at 12:00 that I also need to be at. So,

         24  I'm just going to defer to him for a few moments.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Thank you
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          2  Mr. Chairman-

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Sorry, we've

          4  also been joined by Council Member Foster.  Thank

          5  you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  I'm sorry

          7  ma'am, the lady in the middle, I forgot your name,

          8  I'm sorry.

          9                 MS. KUPKA:  Kathy Kupka.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Kathy, you

         11  mentioned that your, when your sister was missing,

         12  you went to a precinct in Queens, I just want to

         13  know what precinct did you go to?

         14                 MS. KUPKA:  No, I went in Kensington,

         15  Brooklyn, and I cannot remember the precinct number,

         16  is that so funny?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Oh, okay.

         18  And, the gentleman who was the boyfriend of your

         19  sister, was he eventually arrested?

         20                 MS. KUPKA:  Nope, he's in Florida.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  It's up to

         22   --

         23                 MS. KUPKA:  He, because he said when

         24  the police finally did talk to him, he went with an

         25  attorney to the police station and all he would say
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          2  was I went, I took her to Queens Center Mall and

          3  then I dropped her off in her neighborhood, and he

          4  would not say anything.  He didn't say that the baby

          5  was his. He didn't, he would not say anything,

          6  because he had an attorney.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  And you

          8  mentioned that, did you find the body or you have an

          9  idea where the body is?

         10                 MS. KUPKA:  We, we are pretty sure,

         11  through the efforts of my private investigator and

         12  the detective at cold case squad agrees, that her

         13  body is likely at the garage where Darshanand

         14  Persaud's cousin worked as a mechanic.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  And the

         16  police department has not been able to get a search

         17  warrant --

         18                 MS. KUPKA:  No.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  -- To

         20  search that place?

         21                 MS. KUPKA:  No, because there's no

         22  evidence. Because the body's missing.  Missing

         23  persons, it's a horrible thing, because if you're

         24  smart enough to kill someone and hide their body

         25  well enough that no one can find them, there's
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          2  nothing that anyone can do, unless finally they have

          3  so much circumstantial evidence that they can try

          4  for a grand jury indictment.  But, like, they don't

          5  like to do that unless they have a body, because

          6  they want to be, you know, sure to get a conviction.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Right.

          8  And, my question, ma'am, I'm sorry, I forgot your

          9  name.

         10                 MS. FOWLER:  Ms. Fowler.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Please

         12  forgive me.  Ms. Fowler, how were you able to

         13  eventually identify your son's body?

         14                 MS. FOWLER:  Four years later, I, as

         15  one of my urgent phone calls to the supervisor of

         16  the shift, because it does boil down to the

         17  supervisor, I called him and Detective Brown finally

         18  said he would meet with me.  When he met with me, he

         19  brought me the news that my son's body had been

         20  identified and his death certificate was on file,

         21  they just never bothered to tell me.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  So, did he,

         23  they find ID in his pants, or did they --

         24                 MS. FOWLER:  No --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  -- DNA
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          2  samples --

          3                 MS. FOWLER:  -- No, you know, they

          4  took the fingerprints of every Jane and John Doe

          5  that comes through and they run it through the

          6  system and they found my son's fingerprints on the

          7  California system, and that's how they were able to

          8  identify him.  But, they just put that, because he a

          9  brush with the law when he was a juvenile and they

         10  put that in his file and never told me.  In the

         11  meantime, I hired my own dental expert and

         12  identified my son's body, so that I just was not

         13  being told about a case to close it.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  So, if your

         15  son never had fingerprints before, you would never,

         16  still would have never found him then?

         17                 MS. FOWLER:  I would have never known

         18  it.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  And the

         20  morgue, as far as you know, they didn't take any

         21  type of DNA samples or anything at the time?

         22                 MS. FOWLER:  The morgue just held his

         23  body.  My brother, who's a correctional officer at

         24  Riker's Island went to One Police Plaza with me and

         25  looked through all the John Doe pictures they had on
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          2  file and he never found my son's picture in there.

          3  They never even asked us to go to the morgue and

          4  look at the John Does that was there.  There was no

          5  comparison whatsoever.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  I have a

          7  very close friend of mine who's son disappeared over

          8  34 years ago.  So, and up to this day, he, as well

          9  he went to the, within the 103rd precinct

         10  jurisdiction as well, and he has never found his

         11  son. In fact, he is so emotionally troubled by it,

         12  he, has, even all this time has passed, he's never

         13  declared his son dead.  He still continues to pay

         14  his insurance, life insurance, hoping that his son

         15  will return.

         16                 I thank you for having the courage to

         17  come here today and, hopefully, with the information

         18  that you've provided, that we'll be able to stop

         19  this type of nonsense regarding, within the police

         20  department, this bureaucracy, that when missing

         21  persons, a person wants to declare someone's

         22  missing, that the police department takes this very

         23  seriously, and Mr. Chairman, I would like to

         24  actually, if you could please put me as co- sponsor

         25  on all the bills here before us today.
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          2                 MS. FOWLER:  Councilman Vallone --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Thank you.

          4                 MS. FOWLER:  -- Councilman Jennings,

          5  and the fact that you have never, your friend has

          6  never been able to find their loved ones, the best

          7  advice I can give you, they do not do things

          8  automated.  It's in a log book where they bury them,

          9  three across and three deep, and I had to find that

         10  out, the fact that I had to go look at the log and

         11  determine exactly what day they brought my son's

         12  body to that --  so, you might want to pay them a

         13  visit in that timeframe for gender.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Thank you.

         15  I'm going to suggest that to my friend and see if we

         16  can go back and look at, back 34 years ago, and see

         17   --

         18                 MS. FOWLER:  They're very good at

         19  that.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Alright,

         21  thank you very much.  Thank you Mr. Chairman.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you

         23  Council Member Jennings.  Ms. Kupka, regarding that

         24  body, I'm a former prosecutor, as are some of the

         25  Members of this Committee, Council Member Foster.
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          2  There are many ways to get a warrant that don't

          3  involve grand jury indictments.  So, I'm going to,

          4  my Counsel here, Ted Becker, is responsible for all

          5  the work you see in front of you today.  By the way,

          6  what we're writing down while your speaking is

          7  requests for information that we'll be making to the

          8  police department and we're getting much of that

          9  from your testimony today.  But, I wanted to speak

         10  to you when this is done, to see if there's any way

         11  and as a Public Safety Committee, we can assist you

         12  in getting a warrant, because there might be

         13  something that can be done, especially if some

         14  attention is put on it.

         15                 MS. KUPKA:  Well, it's Detective

         16  Delassandra (phonetic) at the cold case squad in

         17  Brooklyn.  He has told me and also his sergeant,

         18  Sergeant Hamilton told me that they went to Queens

         19  and Brooklyn DA's and they both said no.  But, I

         20  don't, I don't, yeah, I don't agree.  But, then I'm

         21  not, I'm not a criminal justice person.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I see the

         23  Queens DA often. So, this is, we hope, once we get

         24  some information, we'll be able to --

         25                 MS. KUPKA:  Thanks, I appreciate it.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  -- Help you.  I

          3  have a few questions -- by the way, just by your

          4  being here and this Hearing happening, we've learned

          5  so many things that many of us didn't know.  I mean,

          6  I'm constantly amazed that the police department is

          7  still operating in the 1940's when it comes to

          8  keeping records.  Every, almost every Hearing we

          9  have and I request records, they're basically kept

         10  on pieces of paper, on people's desks, which is just

         11  outrageous.

         12                 I do have to say that recently and

         13  under this Administration, they've been updating as

         14  fast, much faster than they have in the past and

         15  have been computerizing.  They now say they're going

         16  to have it done by April, which is, which would be

         17  nice.  But, we hear this in many different areas,

         18  that we're not, we can't get records, because they'd

         19  have to go through every detective's desk and under

         20  the desk and little pieces of paper on the desk.

         21  It's just ridiculous that this is the way we're

         22  working.  Again, it's, they've been making huge

         23  strides recently. But, the more I find out about it,

         24  the more outrageous it is.

         25                 Hopefully, I'll get some of my
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          2  colleagues on my side when I ask for more resources

          3  for the police department and more police officers,

          4  so that we can get some of this stuff done, because

          5  they are working under restraints which have never

          6  been seen in the past either, monetarily and force-

          7  wise.  We're down to unbelievably low levels.  But,

          8  again, no excuse for keeping pieces of papers on

          9  your desk and then that's how the records are kept.

         10                 Again, we did learn today that

         11  supposedly the policy is, and none of us, I don't

         12  think believed it, but supposedly the policy is that

         13  every person who walks into the precinct with a

         14  complaint is supposed to have it taken.  So, now we

         15  will, now we're going to get that in writing, again,

         16  what the policy is, and if it's violated, we know

         17  where these people need to go.  Now, that they know

         18  there's official policy to make a complaint.

         19                 The present bill before us, as you

         20  know, would, again, I think, all your cases should

         21  have been investigated as it was, but let's assume

         22  there was, the age was changed, it's now under 16

         23  for special circumstances meaning immediate

         24  investigation.  The present bill makes it 25.  I'm

         25  sure there will be discussions about making it
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          2  somewhere in between.

          3                 I'd like to hear from anyone on what

          4  age you think would be most helpful to make this, I

          5  mean, we could make it 50 if we wanted to.  But,

          6  there has to be an age that we all agree is helpful

          7  because of the circumstances, but doesn't put too

          8  much of a drain on the police department.  What are

          9  your expert opinions on what age we should move the

         10  mandatory special circumstances to?

         11                 MS. FOWLER:  I certainly would like

         12  to speak to that because my bill that's in the

         13  legislature right now, that passed the Assembly, I'm

         14  just waiting for the Senate this year, is to

         15  eliminate the age and do case by case, because

         16  there's no additional usage of strength if you're

         17  going to use 25 or under or if you're going to use

         18  an unlimited age.

         19                 The reason we say eliminate the age

         20  is because, again, once you do the basic

         21  investigation, then you can determine something.

         22  But, right now, they're not doing the basic

         23  investigation and I know that's what they said they

         24  were doing. But, I can guarantee you that you, if

         25  you remove the age restriction, then that would task
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          2  them to take something down in writing.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  The age

          4  restriction, again, I'm going to have to disagree

          5  with you, means immediate search and they can't

          6  begin an immediate search in every case.  So, what

          7  it is now --

          8                 MS. FOWLER:  Right.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  -- Is under,

         10  over, under 16 or special circumstances, basically,

         11  and there are a couple of other where the search,

         12  where it has to begin immediately. There's no way

         13  that the police would --

         14                 MS. FOWLER:  Immediately begin on

         15  every one.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Immediately

         17  begin on every, on every case, and I haven't read

         18  the bill.  I do have a copy of it --

         19                 MS. FOWLER:  Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  -- And Malcolm

         21  Smith is a good friend of mine, so I'm going --

         22                 MS. FOWLER:  Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  -- To be giving

         24  him a call on it.  But, for purposes of what we have

         25  before us today, there's, in New York City, they're
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          2  not going to start an immediate search in every case

          3  that comes in.  So --

          4                 MS. FOWLER:  To getting back --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  -- Working with

          6   --

          7                 MS. FOWLER:  -- To the question was

          8   --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  -- What we have

         10  today --

         11                 MS. FOWLER:  Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  -- And

         13  obviously, every, the higher we increase the age,

         14  the more cases there will be where an immediate

         15  search has to start, and their point is, and, you

         16  know, they don't usually come down here and lie

         17  under oath, but their point is that if they do

         18  immediate searches in cases where, where people who

         19  are say 40 years old and do have the power to take

         20  care of themselves, as opposed to somebody under 16,

         21  then they won't have the resources to spend on the

         22  other cases.

         23                 So, let's assume that's correct a

         24  second.  What age to you all think we should have a

         25  mandatory search start, regardless of circumstances,
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          2  regardless of unusual circumstances? But, that's

          3  what's happening under 16, regardless of

          4  circumstances, they start immediate search.

          5                 MS. FOWLER:  I think you should seal

          6  it at 30.  I think 25 is too young, because

          7  economics the way it is these days, children still

          8  remain with you up to the age of 30.  If I'm going

          9  to go to school to get a degree, who said learning

         10  stop at the bachelors, let's give them more benefit

         11  than that and take them to six to eight more years

         12  longer.  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Ms. Kupka.

         14                 MS. KUPKA:  Yeah, I would agree.  I

         15  think 30 is good, I mean, then it would have been my

         16  sister.  But, I think what really needs to be looked

         17  at is it's an unusual circumstance.  The police hear

         18  missing persons and they just think it's, you know,

         19  bull.  And, I've heard that they don't give much

         20  resources, you know, they don't give many resources

         21  to the missing persons unit because it's not really

         22  highly regarded. So, I think that --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  By the way, I

         24  really, sorry to interrupt you, we really like your

         25  two ideas, both on the pregnancy and on the, again,
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          2  it was, Council Member Katz and I were discussing

          3  this before, about perhaps setting up specialized

          4  bureaus.  If they can't do it in a precinct, but in

          5  maybe a borough that, where people are trained more

          6  than, given more training than what's given right

          7  now.  Seems --

          8                 MS. KUPKA:  Well, the domestic --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  -- To make

         10  sense.

         11                 MS. KUPKA:  -- Violence person, it

         12  kind of goes hand in hand.  I mean, they're --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Absolutely.

         14                 MS. KUPKA:  -- They're not spending

         15  their entire day on domestic violence issues only,

         16  because I mean I know there are a lot, but not that

         17  many.  But, then the few missing persons cases that

         18  come in, they can see the missing persons/domestic

         19  violence specialist, and if that person's not there,

         20  there could be a person, a point person, or they can

         21  wait until that person gets back or go to another

         22  precinct that has the missing persons/domestic

         23  violence person on duty.

         24                 But, it's ridiculous to think that

         25  the uniformed officers, they, there are far too many
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          2  guys being trained and they're not always the

          3  brightest and they're not always the most concerned

          4  or compassionate and you know, they're going to

          5  laugh. I mean, I had pneumonia, full on pneumonia, I

          6  had a small child with me, I was in, hysterical, and

          7  they're like, go find the guy. Then, when I told the

          8  detectives that, but, you know, two days later,

          9  they're like why'd (sic) you go, why'd (sic) you go

         10  over there, why'd (sic) you go find the guy?  I

         11  said, well, the uniformed officer told me to go find

         12  the guy.  What do you, what am I --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  That's another

         14  excellent piece of advice you gave us, where these

         15  cases perhaps should not be even allowed to be,

         16  done, an intake done on these cases by a-

         17                 MS. KUPKA:  Yeah, a uniformed officer

         18   --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  -- Patrol

         20  officer.  They should maybe all go to detectives.

         21  So, we'll be --

         22                 MS. KUPKA:  And pregnant, and just

         23  for --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  -- We'll be

         25  writing, that's all going in our letter --
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          2                 MS. KUPKA:  Thanks.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  -- And we'll be

          4  getting a response to all this.

          5                 MS. KUPKA:  And the pregnancy piece

          6  too.  They didn't even care that she was pregnant.

          7  It wasn't even a concern, she's five months

          8  pregnant.  I mean, that's quite far along, and the

          9  guy begged her to have an abortion and she was

         10  afraid of him.  I mean, those are all things that

         11  think, wait, maybe he killed her to get rid of the

         12  baby.

         13                 Pregnant women are more vulnerable.

         14  It's, it's a, you know, depending on who you're

         15  pregnant by, it could be a very dangerous situation

         16  and that still didn't raise the alarm.  So, if it

         17  has to be that they have to investigate when it's a

         18  pregnant women, I think they should, there's a

         19  small, there's a baby, you know, to be thought

         20  about.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Ms. Wilmer.

         22                 MS. WILMER:  The training, the

         23  training that you're talking about and you know

         24  that's what we pushed for a few years ago when we

         25  were here.  But, I, you know, the stats on even the
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          2  Missing Persons Squad, itself, I think there was

          3  only, at that time, there was like one person in the

          4  whole squad that had ever received the full training

          5  from the Justice Department or the National Center

          6  for Missing and Exploited Children.

          7                 This training is vital and I was, you

          8  know, when we heard that no, and I forget the guy,

          9  he finally announced that, you know, a couple had

         10  received the training, or two.  He was very proud of

         11  himself, but, how could he have a Missing Persons

         12  Squad without being trained, you know?

         13                 I really feel strongly that each

         14  precinct, there should be no reason why this

         15  shouldn't be, this should be treated like domestic

         16  violence, rape.  This is another specialized field.

         17  It's unique.  It's not like, you know, somebody's

         18  robbing somebody or something.  This is different

         19  and you're involving a lot of psychological issues.

         20                 You're talking to parents that are,

         21  some people act well under stress, some don't act at

         22  all.  I was criticized for crying all the time.  You

         23  know, like, hey, I don't know how to act, this

         24  never, you know.  This is the way, oh, you were

         25  crying all the time.  Well, yeah, you know, I hate
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          2  to be -- but there should be somebody that's able to

          3  sift through the emotions. This is terrible.

          4  Anyway, I really, you know, would like to stress

          5  that we should have some specialists to, for the

          6  intake.  As for the age, I think 30 is, you know, in

          7  lieu of, I hate to force things on people.  I don't

          8  like that.  Everybody should know how to act, but

          9  they don't.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  There's always,

         11  I mean there's always going to be discretion.  We're

         12  always going to have problems with discretion.

         13  There's nothing anybody could ever --

         14                 MS. WILMER:  Right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  -- Do about

         16  that.  But, there would --

         17                 MS. WILMER:  But, you should prepare

         18  yourself the best you can by training or by, and

         19  something, that maybe, I mean, as parents, we never,

         20  always, we don't always make the right decisions,

         21  you know, either.  You know, that's fine.  But, you

         22  know, you should really try to prepare yourself for

         23  this job that you're taking in.  That's about all.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Council Member

         25  Barron.

                                                            103

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  First of all,

          3  Ms. Fowler, Ms. Kupka, Ms. Wilmer, I mean, my heart

          4  just goes out for you and I express my condolences.

          5  I can't even fathom, you know, what you've gone

          6  through.  But, I want to say that your testimony has

          7  been awesome and extremely valuable, and I think the

          8  30 year is good and that's why I put it out there,

          9  because I wasn't sure.

         10                 I didn't want them to hide behind

         11  resources and the higher the age goes up, the more

         12  resources we have to have, so we can't do it.  So,

         13  my attempts to get as much support as I could on

         14  this bill, and we do have 26 people on board already

         15  and others are still signing on to it.  But, 30

         16  years would be fine with me.  I think the idea of a

         17  specialist would be excellent. The pregnancy piece

         18  as listed as part of the category are also very good

         19  things.

         20                 But, I wanted to address some of the

         21  things that Ms. Fowler raised.  Is there a way we,

         22  you know, can do the 30 years for the immediate, if

         23  we wanted to move it there, but what about, how do

         24  we get them to immediately, at least, give every

         25  case a number and, you know, at least record every
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          2  case that comes in and say that we've recorded this,

          3  this was not valid? We recorded this, this was valid

          4  and then we could determine, you know, whether we

          5  want to do that or not.  That's my concern. Then, I

          6  needed to get some clarity from the police

          7  department, when do they turn it over to the Missing

          8  Persons Bureau in the Department?

          9                 MS. KUPKA:  Seven days.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Right.  See,

         11  that's too long.  I think our bill cuts it back down

         12  to three, but, you know, we might want to look at

         13  that too and maybe more of an immediate turnover if

         14  there's some, you know, some, you know, salient

         15  points that are really clear that this is a case

         16  that's valid.  So, we cut it back to three from

         17  seven and the age from 16 to 25.  But, 30, and even

         18  less days to get it over to the Bureau would be good

         19  and the other pieces that you put in the bill, I

         20  would gladly accept those and I just want to thank

         21  you so much.

         22                 I'm so, I'm sure that the Romona

         23  Moore family is glad for your testimony, not for

         24  your circumstances, but that now they know that

         25  they're not alone out here with this kind of thing
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          2  happening and it's good, and perhaps one day we can

          3  all get together and, you know, really share the

          4  support.  So, thank you so much for being supportive

          5  for the family and for this particular bill.  Mr.

          6  Chair, I want to thank you so much, because you had

          7  a lot on your plate and you gave this some good

          8  time, thank you very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you

         10  Council Member. Council Member Foster.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  Thank you, I

         12  just first want to apologize for being late.  I had

         13  a conflict, but I've had a staff member whose been

         14  sitting throughout this whole Hearing, and I want to

         15  say that I applaud you, Chairperson Vallone, and

         16  especially you, Barron, for having the insight and

         17  concern enough to bring this, and I think this will

         18  be a work- in- progress.

         19                 As I was listening, I'm a little over

         20  30, but I know if we, since I was a child, I call

         21  home, if I'm going to be late and I don't live with

         22  my parents, but it's what we do.  So, I know, right

         23  away, that if I did not show up, based upon pattern,

         24  based upon the fact, like when I leave City Hall, I

         25  will say, Dad, I'm on my way Uptown to whatever
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          2  meeting.  I check in. Not because I have to, but

          3  because I know that's what we do. That if that

          4  didn't happen and I didn't show up, right away, they

          5  would know something was wrong, because it just, you

          6  know, it's not normal circumstances.

          7                 So, as we look to put caveats with

          8  the 30 and the pregnant, we've got to also make sure

          9  that when we are dealing, when the police are

         10  talking to families, that you are aware of

         11  circumstances.  That if someone always calls at 5:00

         12  and has been doing it for the past 20 years, that if

         13  they don't check in at 5:00 or 5:30 or 6:00 and you,

         14  in your gut, know something is wrong, then let's act

         15  on that.

         16                 So, I just want to, again, apologize,

         17  my being late does not mean I'm not concerned, and

         18  like I said, I had a staff person here.  And,

         19  especially as we come to this holiday season, please

         20  know that your families are in my thoughts and

         21  prayers because it's, any loss is difficult, but the

         22  loss that goes unexplained or unresolved for years

         23  is even more difficult. Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you

         25  Council Member Foster.  As I said before, as a
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          2  former prosecutor, we worked together in the

          3  Manhattan DA's office, so she'll be very helpful on

          4  this.  Also, Council Member Reed has a staff member

          5  here that's been through the, and he, again, has a

          6  conflict, but it's very rare that they have staff,

          7  they have, we don't have huge staffs, that they send

          8  here to spend time.  That's how important this is.

          9                 Unfortunately, we, like I said, we

         10  all have other Hearings also to get to.  So, we need

         11  to leave soon.  But, again, let me thank you, the

         12  three of you, you can't imagine how helpful that

         13  you've been.  We're going to get addresses and I

         14  want to send copies of everything we do to you, to

         15  keep you involved and, again, I want my Counsel to

         16  speak to you about that individual case, so that I

         17  can specifically speak to DA Chuck Hines (phonetic)

         18  and DA Brown about what's happening.  Perhaps,

         19  there's nothing we can do, but it doesn't hurt to

         20  check into it.

         21                 Again, thank you for coming down

         22  here.  We will be contacting you.  We will be

         23  working with you, and whatever we wind up doing,

         24  today's a huge help, a big step forward, no matter

         25  what happens, because we're a little bit bound,
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          2  unfortunately, by our powers as the City Council.

          3  There's only so many things we can do and can't do.

          4  But, one thing we can do is hold Oversight Hearings

          5  and shine the light on things and that's what we did

          6  here today.  So, thank you very much for coming

          7  down.

          8                 MS. WILMER:  Thank you so much.

          9                 MS. KUPKA: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Meeting

         11  adjourned.

         12                 (Meeting adjourned at 12:15 p.m.)

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            109

          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CHERYL MILLER, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 9th day of December 2004.
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                                   ---------------------

         25                          CHERYL MILLER
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          9            I, CHERYL MILLER, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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